
 

ATTACHMENTS CHECKLIST for FULL PROPOSAL 
                                           Check off submitted attachments here. 

  PHOTOS in full appraisal and capital needs assessment report online 

REQUIRED 
 MAP showing all properties in the portfolio, keyed to the following table … 

 DESCRIPTIVE 
TABLE 

... for each building: units, bedrooms/bathrooms, income restrictions, 
occupancy & compliance status, past Newton public funding, cash flow 

Separate, 
detailed 
budget 

attachments 
REQUIRED. 

PROJECT FINANCES printed and as computer spreadsheets, with both uses & sources of funds 
 sources & uses      Please summarize the uses of each source over time. 
 rents & debt 
 replacement reserves & capital improvements  

 Please show how capital improvements will be prioritized by property and year and identify any 
opportunities to make additional portfolio units accessible or visitable, with est. costs. 

 20-year operating/maintenance budget  
 appraisal (commissioned by bank or NHA)  

 market analysis: please provide (or summarize & link to, if it is longer than 10 pages) the most 
recent update of the analysis done for Haywood House 

 procurement: NHA’s understanding based on meeting with the City’s Chief Purchasing Officer 
that standard procedures used by NHA will meet City requirements 

REQUIRED. 

SPONSOR FINANCES & CAPACITY 

 
for both NHA and CAN-DO: most recent annual operating budget (revenue & expenses) & 
financial statement (assets & liabilities)   No operating budget provided for CAN-DO. 

 NHA mission & current portfolio, including a descriptive table for NHA’s scattered-site 
“management” portfolio similar to the one above for CAN-DO 

 
NHA staff capacity, both current & needed (planned expansion): for all stages from portfolio 
transfer through refinancing, property rehabilitation, long-term management, development; 
please include NHA staff organizational chart, current & planned 

 short resumes for project team: current NHA staff, current NHA Commissioners, consultants 
(please include any other City of Newton board affiliations) 

SITE CONTROL, DEED RESTRICTIONS 
 legally binding option or purchase & sale agreement – Letter of Intent attached 

FAIR HOUSING, ACCESSIBILITY, RELOCATION 
 affirmative marketing / resident selection strategy to make all units eligible for SHI 
 fair housing: training completed, summary of any past complaints & their resolution  
 reasonable accommodation/reasonable modification policy (summary) 

not provided relocation plans/ budget (for rehabilitation) 
COMMUNITY OUTREACH 

REQUIRED. not provided summarize efforts to date & plans for additional outreach 
OPTIONAL.  LETTERS of SUPPORT from Newton residents, organizations, or businesses 

 

 
 

PROJECT TITLE Newton Housing Authority – Acceptance of CAN-DO Portfolio 
COSTS &  

NEWTON PUBLIC SUBSIDIES 
per unit (33 units – 

counting each bedroom in the group home as a “unit”) per bedroom 

Total Development Cost $697,128.26 (based on 19 units for which TDC is known) $315,367.55  
Past Newton public subsidies  
(total from all sources) 

$253,424.55 $126,712.27 

Total Newton public subsidies  
     if current request is funded 

$58,386.18 $29,193.09 
 

20-year capital needs $59,020.06 $29,510.03 
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NHA Organizational Chart December 2019
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NHA Organizational Chart December 2019
Post CAN-DO Property Acquisition
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    Newton Housing Authority
Consolidated Operating Budget
           Fiscal Year 2020

101 units 42 units 10 units 7 units 24 units 32 units 226 units 36 units 36 units 441 units 25 units 57 units 1037
Echo Ridge, 

Hampton Place, 
Century Village, 
Scattered Sites Hamilton Grove Walnut Street Central Street

New Hyde 
School

State 
Leased 
Housing

ParkerHouse , 
Jackson 

Garden,Horace 
Mann, 

Nonantum 
Village Echo Ridge

Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers
Newton 

Corner Place
Total Budget 

FYE 2020

 Prior 
Budget  

2019  Change  
Section 8 Section 8

REVENUES 400-1 667-2 (A) 689-1,2 689-C (689-4) 400-9 (689-3) MRVP MA036-1 MA036-2 MA036-3 HCV SRO MGMT

Rental Income 582,000               138,000               27,684            24,912              81,600          840,000              114,000         177,000       290,400        2,275,596 2,257,416   18,180        
Rental Income - Federal Section 8 936,000               936,000 960,000      (24,000)       
Section 8 Rent Subsidy 609,600        609,600 462,720      146,880      
Interest Income 5,625                   30,000                 3                     188                   100               450           28,500                75                  688              2,500             2,000               7,000            77,128 58,520        18,608        
Misc. Income 16,800                 2,400                   1,320            17,602                4,382             3,082           3,000             16,450          65,036 75,321        (10,285)       
MRVP Admin Fee 13,920      13,920 13,920        -              
Operating Subsidy-DHCD 379,400               163,861        543,260 441,465      101,795      
HAP Subsidy HUD/DHCD 240,000    6,355,865      152,000           6,747,865 6,689,980   57,885        
HUD Operating Subsidy 1,121,347           149,978         128,317       1,399,643 1,372,582   27,061        
HUD Section 8 Subsidy-Admin Fee 511,903         38,088             549,991 532,359      17,631        
Property Management Fess 0 -              -              
Bookkeeping Fee 0 -              -              
Asset Management Fees 0 -              -              
Capital Fund Operations 15,000           15,000 15,000        -              
Capital Fund Administrative fee 40,000                40,000 40,000        -              
Inter program transfer (55,000)              55,000           0 -              -              
TOTAL REVENUES 983,825               1,106,400            27,687            25,100              246,881        254,370    1,992,448           338,436         309,087       6,873,267      192,088           923,450        13,273,038 12,919,284 353,754      

EXPENDITURES
Administration:
   Salaries 88,942 57,165 5,402 3,781 21,694 10,124 395,722 40,704 40,704 267,000 24,009 168,170 1,123,417 1,010,590   112,827      
   Legal 18,750 2,500 250 250 2,500 0 16,000 7,500 1,500 5,000 750 3,000 58,000 58,000        -              
   Travel 1,708 710 169 118 406 0 3,823 609 609 7,460 423 2,964 19,000 16,000        3,000          
   Accounting 3,546 1,474 351 246 843 0 7,934 1,264 1,264 15,481 878 2,001 35,280 33,563        1,717          
   Audit Services 5,300 0 0 0 0 0 3,500 1,000 1,000 3,000 1,000 1,500 16,300 13,100        3,200          
   Sundry Office 16,482 6,854 1,632 1,142 3,916 0 36,880 5,875 5,875 81,964 4,080 9,301 174,000 166,300      7,700          
   Property Management Fess 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -              -              
   Bookkeeping Fee 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -              -              
   Asset Management Fees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -              -              

0 -              -              
Total Administration 134,727 68,704 7,804 5,538 29,359 10,124 463,858 56,952 50,952 379,905 31,139 186,936 1,425,997 1,297,553   128,444      

-              
Tenant Services:
   Salaries 116,473 9,693 9,693 135,860 135,904      (44)              
   Other 606 250 1,000 500 500 2,856 2,856          -              

Total Tenant Services 606 250 0 0 0 0 117,473 10,193 10,193 0 0 0 138,716 138,760 (44)

Utilities
   Water and Sewer 99,375 34,688 5,813 4,875 14,719 230,320 54,010 22,610 65,100 531,509 503,475      28,034        
   Electric 20,815 35,535 0 0 29,900 183,823 28,000 80,991 26,500 405,563 367,283      38,281        
   Gas 11,218 26,386 0 0 8,058 225,710 21,220 0 23,700 316,292 299,640      16,652        

-              
Total Utilities 131,408 96,609 5,813 4,875 52,677 0 639,853 103,230 103,601 0 0 115,300 1,253,364 1,170,398   82,966        

Maintenance
   Labor 94,565 149,673 1,614 1,130 49,704 322,693 51,178 51,178 52,906 774,642 744,799      29,843        
   Materials & Supplies 21,237 10,404 1,560 1,566 7,865 55,220 9,013 9,124 2,700 118,690 91,129        27,560        
   Contract Costs 84,750 31,000 2,750 1,150 42,800 84,750 22,850 7,750 43,900 321,700 354,090      (32,390)       
   Condominium fees 277,642 33,888 311,530 296,344      15,186        
Total Maintenance 478,194 191,077 5,924 3,846 100,370 0 462,663 83,041 68,053 0 0 133,394 1,526,561 1,486,362   40,199        
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     Newton Housing Authority
Consolidated Operating Budget

Page 2 of 2            Fiscal Year 2020

Echo Ridge, 
Hampton Place, 
Century Village, 
Scattered Sites Hamilton Grove Walnut Street Central Street

New Hyde 
School

State 
Leased 
Housing

ParkerHouse , 
Jackson 

Garden,Horace 
Mann, 

Nonantum 
Village Echo Ridge

Housing 
Choice 

Vouchers
Newton 

Corner Place
Total Budget 

FYE 2020

 Prior 
Budget  

2019  Change  

400-1 667-2 (A) 689-1,2 689-C (689-4) 400-9 (689-3) MRVP MA036-1 MA036-2 MA036-3 HCV SRO MGMT
General Expense Section 8 -              
   Insurance 20,971 15,392 2,041 1,470 5,768 228 87,513 12,798 12,838 36,189 1,179 42,541 238,927 214,259      24,668        
   Payment in Lieu of Taxes 0 0 0 -              -              
   Employee Benefits 63,703 74,831 5,791 4,660 26,635 3,337 261,327 33,375 33,714 106,928 5,348 64,172 683,823 638,978      44,844        
   Housing Assistance Payments 240,000 6,355,865 152,000 6,747,865 6,689,980   57,885        
   Interest expense 23,550 80,378 103,928 105,222      (1,295)         
   Other General Expense 3,500 3,500 4,350          (850)            

-              
Total General Expense 84,674 113,773 7,832 6,130 32,403 243,565 348,840 46,173 46,552 6,502,481 158,527 187,091 7,778,042 7,652,790 125,252      

-              
Total Routine Exepenses 829,609 470,412 27,373 20,388 214,809 253,689 2,032,687 299,590 279,350 6,882,387 189,665 622,721 12,122,680 11,745,863 376,817

Net Income (Loss) before Non-
Routine Expenses 154,215 635,988 314 4,711 32,072 681 (40,239) 38,846 29,737 (9,119) 2,423 300,729 1,150,358 1,173,421 (23,063)

Nonroutine Expenditures
   Extraordinary Maintenance 84,000 3,000 0 2,000 7,000 60,000 32,000 24,500 136,000 348,500 220,000      128,500      
   Equipment Replacements 12,975 2,850 2,650 2,950 950 950 5,500 28,825 32,350        (3,525)         
   Equipment Additions 0 0 0 0 0 0 68,000        (68,000)       
   Betterment and Additions 0 0 0 174,500 174,500 840,000      (665,500)     
   Collection Losses 5,000 1,000 4,200 570 885 11,655 11,713        (58)              

-              
Total Nonroutine Expenditures 101,975 6,850 0 2,000 9,650 0 67,150 33,520 26,335 0 0 316,000 563,480 1,172,063 (608,583)

NET INCOME 52,240 629,138 314 2,711 22,422 681 (107,389) 5,326 3,402 (9,119) 2,423 (15,271) 586,878 1,358 585,520

Payment Towards Mortage Principle 0 64,150 71,996 136,146 134,851 1,295          

Surplus (Deficit) 52,240 564,988 314 2,711 22,422 681 (107,389) 5,326 3,402 (9,119) 2,423 (87,267) 450,732 (133,493) 584,225      

UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS ANAYLYSIS

Unrestricted Operating Reserve 12/31/2018 422,612 2,326,643 936 92,175 97,343 53,925 2,347,619 134,885 250,887 435,046 245,681 1,578,221 7,985,974

Projected increase (decrease) FY 2019 (22,269) (133,027) (2,194) 3,802 1,958 (942) (15,454) 1,529 14,234 (12,968) 576 31,262 (133,493)
Projected Balance 12/31/2019 400,343 2,193,616 (1,258) 95,977 99,301 52,983 2,332,165 136,414 265,121 422,078 246,257 1,609,483 7,852,481
Projected increase (decrease) FY 2020 52,240 564,988 314 2,711 22,422 681 (107,389) 5,326 3,402 (9,119) 2,423 (87,267) 450,732
Projected Balance 12/31/2020 452,583 2,758,604 (945) 98,689 121,723 53,663 2,224,776 141,740 268,523 412,959 248,680 1,522,216 8,303,212
Maximum Reserve 465,792               238,631               13,686            11,194              112,229        N/A 699,946              111,037         101,895       N/A N/A N/A

Percent of Maximum 97.16% 1156.01% -6.90% 881.62% 108.46% 317.85% 127.65% 263.53%
Page 2 
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MARCUM 
ACCOUNTANTS,.. ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

To The Board of Commissioners 
Newton Housing Authority 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Newton Housing Authority, as of 
December 31, 2018, and for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, 
which collectively comprise the Newton Housing Authority's basic financial statements as listed 
in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the 
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express 
no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

MARCUMGROUP 
MEMBER 

Marcum UP • 53 State Street • 17th Floor • Boston, Massachusetts 02109 • Phone 617.807.5000 • Fax 617.807.5001 • marcumllp.com 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of the Newton Housing Authority, as of December 31, 2018, and the changes 
in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Notes 2 and 16 to the financial statements, the Authority adopted a new accounting 
pronouncement, Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 75, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions. Our opinion is not 
modified with respect to this matter 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that 
Management's Discussion and Analysis and the required supplementary information presented on 
pages 40 through 43, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic 
financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is 
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential 
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, 
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing 
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to 
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 
the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the 
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with evidence sufficient to express 
an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Newton Housing Authority's basic financial statements. The 
supplementary information on pages 44 through 52, as listed in the table of contents, and the 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards, as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 US. 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost 
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
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The supplementary information presented on pages 44 through 52 and the Schedule of 
Expenditures of Federal Awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and 
relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial 
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of 
the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to 
prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information presented on pages 44 through 
52 and the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in 
relation to the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have issued our report dated September 
30, 2019 on our consideration of the Newton Housing Authority's internal control over financial 
reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and 
grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Newton Housing Authority's 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Newton Housing 
Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

Jfj)A1JJ,1I.., L l f 

Boston, Massachusetts 
September 30, 2019 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

As management of the Newton Housing Authority (the Authority), we offer readers of the 
Authority's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of 
the Authority for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the 
information presented here in conjunction with the Authority's financial statements, which begin 
on page 15. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The assets and deferred outflows of the Authority exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows 
at the end of fiscal year 2018 by $18,116,828 (net position). 

• The net position of the Authority consisted of investment in capital assets, net of related debt 
in the amount of $13,743,730, restricted net position in the amount of $2,222,346 and 
unrestricted net position in the amount of $2,150,752. 

• The Authority's cash and investments at December 31, 2018 was $8,280,397 representing an 
increase of $1,270,759 from December 31, 2017. 

• The Authority had intergovernmental revenues of $9,797,636, program revenues (charges for 
services) and other revenues of $4,158,656. The Authority's total expenses (exclusive of 
depreciation expense) were $11,868,173 for the year ended December 31, 2018. 

• The Authority's capital outlays for the year were $779,363. 

OVERVIEW OF THE NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

The Newton Housing Authority was created in 1959 to provide and promote safe and sanitary 
housing for low income persons residing in Newton, MA. The Authority is a municipal corporation 
located in Newton, MA as was established under Chapter 121B of the State Statutes. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Newton Housing Authority's financial statements consist of two parts -1) management's 
discussion and analysis, which is intended to serve as an introduction to the Authority's basic 
financial statements, and 2) the Authority's basic financial statements which are comprised of two 
components: 1) financial statements, and 2) notes to the financial statements. This report also 
contains the schedule of expenditures of federal awards as supplementary information in addition 
to the basic financial statements. 

The Authority is considered by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAP) to be a special purpose government accounted for as enterprise funds. Its 
chartered purpose is the housing of low and moderate income families and elderly individuals. All 
of the activities, programs and grants administered by the Authority are focused for that purpose. 

As a single purpose enterprise fund government, the Authority is permitted to issue entity level 
financial statements. These statements report financial information for each of the Authority's 
funds and a combined total of all funds that represents the Authority wide financial position. The 
following is a brief description of each financial statement. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview 
of the Authority's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

• The Statement of Net Position is prepared using the accrual basis of accounting and provides 
information relating to all financial and capital resources for the Authority as of the reporting 
date and related debts and other liabilities. The statement of net position is presented in a format 
where assets plus deferred outflows less liabilities and deferred inflows equals net position. 
Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity, and are classified as "Current" 
(convertible into cash within one year), and "Non-current." 

• Net position (formerly net assets) represent the cumulative effect ofrevenue and expenses. It 
is also the difference between the sum of assets and deferred outflows less the sum of liabilities 
and deferred inflows. Net position is reported in three broad categories: 

Unrestricted Net Position is designed to represent the net available liquid (non-capital) 
assets, net of liabilities, for the entire Authority. 

Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Related Debt consists of all Capital Assets, reduced 
by accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes 
or other borrowing that is attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of 
those assets. 

Restricted Net Position consists of restricted assets, when constraints are placed on the 
assets by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, etc. 

Statement of Revenue Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position 

• This statement is similar to an Income Statement. This statement includes operating revenues, 
such as rental income; operating expenses, such as administrative, utilities, maintenance and 
depreciation; and non-operating revenue and expenses, such as grant revenue, investment 
income and interest expense and capital contributions and operating transfers. 

• The focus of this Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position is the 
"Change in Net Position," which is similar to Net Income or Loss. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Statement of Cash Flows 

• This Statement of Cash Flows shows the sources and amounts from which the Authority 
received cash such as income from tenants, income from grants, loans, etc. and the items and 
amounts for which cash was used such as payments to vendors and contractors, payments to 
employees, repayment of loans, etc. The statement is divided into four major sections: 
operating activities, non-capital financing activities, capital and related financing activities and 
investing activities. The statement functions down to the net increase or decrease in the 
Authority's cash accounts for the reporting period. 

THE AUTHORITY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Authority, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. 

The Authority maintains an enterprise fund. The programs supporting this are as follows: 

Federal Public Housing - This program accounts for all activities relating to the leasing and 
operation of apartments in buildings that were constructed and are owned by the Authority. 
These units are rented to low income families and low income elderly, disabled, and special 
needs individuals. The properties were constructed with grants and or loans provided by the 
U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The Authority receives grants 
from HUD to subsidize operating deficits. Tenants are charged rents based on a percentage of 
their income. In addition HUD provides capital improvement dollars through multiple capital 
grant programs. 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher - HUD provides grants to the Authority to subsidize rents 
paid by low income families and individuals who rent dwelling units from private landlords. 
Under this program qualified applicants are issued vouchers which may be used by the 
applicant to obtain housing in the private rental market. The Authority will subsidize the 
landlord for the difference between the rent requested and the tenants share of the rent not to 
exceed a predetermined payment standard. 

Section 8 New Construction Program- HUD provides a direct mortgage to a third party owner 
of a residential rental building. As a condition of the mortgage on the building, the owner enters 
into a long-term contract to rent some or all of the dwelling units to low income individuals or 
families and receive project based Section 8 rental assistance. Under the contract, the owner 
receives a subsidy equal to the difference between an approved contract rent and the tenant's 
share of the rent determined under HUD Section 8 regulations. On behalf of HUD, the 
Authority monitors the compliance with the agreement, as well as paying the HAP expense to 
the owner. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

State and Local Programs - The Authority operates the following state and local programs: 

• State Consolidated Chapters 667 and 705 - Under these programs the Authority owns, 
operates and maintains rental housing acquired with grants from Massachusetts 
Department of Housing & Community Development (DHCD). Dwelling units are leased 
to low income tenants and the elderly at rates based on their ability to pay. Operations are 
supported by the DHCD via operating grants. 

• State Chapter 689 Housing - Under this program the Authority owns operates and 
maintains rental housing acquired with grants from DHCD. The building is generally 
rented to a non-profit corporation who provides health and human resource needs to 
mentally disabled individuals. 

• Massachusetts Rental Voucher Program - DHCD provides grants to the Authority to 
subsidize rents paid by low income families and individuals who rent dwelling units from 
private landlords. Under this program qualified applicants are issued vouchers which may 
be used by the applicant to obtain housing in the private rental market. The Authority will 
subsidize the landlord for the difference between the rent requested and the tenant's share 
of the rent not to exceed a contract amount. 

• State Modernization Program - DHCD provides grant funds to authorities with State 
Consolidated units based on the Authority's application and determination of need. The 
funds are predominantly used to make physical improvements to buildings and dwelling 
units owned by the Authority under the State Consolidated Housing Program. 

• Authority-Owned Section 8 New Construction- DHCD provides a direct mortgage to the 
Authority as owners of a residential rental building. As a condition of the mortgage or the 
mortgage insurance on the building the Authority has entered into a long-term contract to 
rent some or all of the dwelling units to low income individuals or families and receive 
project based Section 8 rental assistance from DHCD through a contract between DHCD 
and HUD. Under the contract the Authority receives a subsidy equal to the difference 
between an approved contract rent and the tenant's share of the rent determined under HUD 
Section 8 regulations. 

• Business Activities / City of Newton's Ten Percent Zoning Ordinance - The Authority, 
through the City of Newton's Ten Percent Zoning Ordinance, is the recipient of monies or 
units of housing donated from developers of for-profit housing in Newton. This ordinance 
enables the Authority to broaden the scope of services it provides to the community by 
operating or buying additional affordable housing to lease to low and moderate income 
individuals and families. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

AN OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATIONS 

The Authority's overall financial position and operations for the past two years are summarized 
below based on the information included in the current and prior financial statements. 

The Authority's total assets and deferred outflows at December 31, 2018 were $27.10 million, an 
increase of $1.01 million, or 3. 89% from December 31, 201 7. 

The Authority's overall financial position and results of operations are presented at the end of this 
report. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

As of December 31, 2018, the Authority's investment in capital assets for its governmental 
activities was $18,067,722 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets 
includes buildings, improvements, equipment, and computer software. 

Major capital asset purchases during the current fiscal year include the following: 

Capital expenditures of $779,363 were made for the improvement of the Authority's rental units. 

LONG-TERM DEBT 

As of December 31, 2018, the Authority has a total $2,163,976 of long-term debt consisting of 7 
separate mortgages secured by the properties acquired by the NHA Rental Acquisition Program 
and NHA Local Program. Of the total, $2,022,087 represents the long-term portion and $141,889 
represents the current portion of the debt. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AFFECTING NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET 

The following factors were considered in preparing the Authority's budget for the 2019 fiscal year: 

• There will be significant increases in employee benefit costs relating to health insurance and 
PHA share of retirement costs. 

• The budget was prepared with the knowledge that the operating subsidy for the Low Rent 
Program is expected to be decreased from the prior year funding of 95% to an expected 93% 
proration of the CY 2019 Operating fund. The Authority budgeted admin fee revenue of the 
Housing Choice Voucher Program at 80%, which is consistent with the prior year. In addition 
to the admin fee proration, the Authority budgeted HAP expenses at 100% of its CY 2018 HAP 
funding. 

• The Massachusetts State Housing Programs' operating expenses, other than utility costs, are 
being funded by the State at a 4.0% increase from the prior year level. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

FUTURE EVENTS THAT WILL FINANCIALLY IMPACT THE AUTHORITY 

There are currently no future events that can be anticipated that will have a financial impact on the 
Authority. 

Newton Housing Authority 
Statements of Net Position 
December 31, 2018 and 2017 Increase Percent 

2018 2017 {Decrease} Change 
Current Assets $ 8,514,827 $ 7,175,213 $ 1,339,614 18.67% 
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 18,067,722 18,353,124 (285,402) -1.56% 
Deferred Outflow of Resources 520,602 560 379 (39,777} -7.10% 
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows 27,103,151 26,088,716 1014435 3.89% 

Current Liabilities 787,355 776,382 10,973 1.41% 
Non-Current Liabilities 7,934,602 6,492,599 1,442,003 22.21% 
Deferred Inflow of Resources 264,366 24 103 240,263 996.82% 
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows 8,986,323 7,293,084 1,693,239 23.22% 

Net Position: 
Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Debt 13,743,730 16,051,403 (2,307,673) -14.38% 
Restricted 2,222,346 672,159 1,550,187 230.63% 
Unrestricted 2,150,752 2,072,070 78 682 3.80% 
Total Net Position $ 18 116 828 $ 18 795 632 $ (678,804) -3.61% 

The Authority's combined net position decreased by $678,807 from a year ago. This represents a 
decrease of 3.61 %. This increase is a combination of three components of net position: 1) 
Investment in capital assets, net of debt - a decrease of $2,307,673, 2) Restricted net position - an 
increase of $1,550,187, and 3) Unrestricted net position - an increase of $78,682. 

The increase (decrease) in invested in capital assets, net of debt consists of the following items: 
Capital grants received and expended 
Capital purchases from operations 
Restriction of soft debt 
Depreciation expense 
Capital debt principal paid 
Net increase (decrease) in invested in capital assets 

The increase (decrease) in restricted net position consists of the following items: 
Restricted Revenue - HCV 
Restricted Expenses - HCV 
Restriction of soft debt 
Release of restricted net position 
Net increase (decrease) in restricted net position 

The increase (decrease) in unrestricted net position consists of the following items: 

$ 433,416 
329,380 

(2,160,016) 
(1,048,198) 

137 745 
$ (2,307 673) 

$ 6,436,613 
(6,374,283) 
2,160,016 
(672,159} 

$ 1,550 187 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Revenues and operating grants ( excluding restricted revenue and capital) 
Expenses ( excluding depreciation and restricted expenses) 
Capital purchases from operations 
Capital debt principal paid 
Prior Period Adjustment 
Release ofrestricted net position 
Net increase (decrease) in unrestricted net position 

Other items of maior change from 2017 to 2018: 

$ 7,086,263 
(5,493,890) 

(329,380) 
(137,745) 

(1,718,725) 
672 159 

$ 78.682 

Current assets increased by $1,339,614 or 18.67%. This increase is related to the increase in cash 
and cash equivalents and accounts receivable - other government. The increase in cash is a result 
of the Authority's state 667-A program earning and collecting greater HAP payments for those 
units. In addition, accounts receivable - other government increased due to funds owed from 
DHCD for the Authority's 400-9 state program. 

Investment in Capital Assets, Net of Debt and Restricted Net Position decreased and increased, 
respectively by a corresponding $2,160,016 due to restricting the equity related to the forgivable 
loans for the properties on Pelham Street and Newtonville Avenue. 

The deferred outflows of $520,602 represents the Authority's future payments to their retirement 
system and group insurance commission. This account is recorded as part of the GASB 68 Pension 
Accounting Standard and GASB 75 Other Post-Employment Benefits Accounting Standard. 

The deferred inflows of$264,366 is recorded as part of the GASB 68 Pension Accounting Standard 
and GASB 75 Other Post-Employment Benefits Accounting Standard. 

Non-current liabilities increased by $1,442,003 or 22.21 %. This increase is due to the 
implementation of GASB 75 Other Post-Employment Benefits Accounting Standard to record the 
Authority's entire OPEB liability. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Newton Housing Authority 
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017 

\ Increase Percentage 
2018 2017 {Decrease} Change 

Revenues 
HUD Operating Subsidies $ 8,450,370 $ 8,170,342 $ 280,028 3.43% 
Tenant Revenue - Rents and Other 3,831,839 2,654,520 1,177,319 44.35% 
Other Government Grants 1,060,662 1,495,306 (434,644) -29.07% 
HUD Capital Grants 286,604 29,368 257,236 875.91% 
Other Revenue 244,771 127,125 117,646 92.54% 
Investment Income 82,046 68,882 13 164 19.11% 

Total Revenue 13,956,292 12,545,543 1 410 749 11.25% 

Expenses 
Housing Assistance Payments 6,342,894 6,263,084 79,810 1.27% 
Maintenance 1,966,770 2,072,995 (106,225) -5.12% 
Administrative 1,870,565 1,646,111 224,454 13.64% 
Utilities 1,163,493 1,198,009 (34,516) -2.88% 
Depreciation 1,048,198 1,176,927 (128,729) -10.94% 
Insurance Expenses 205,537 200,112 5,425 2.71% 
Tenant Services 113,773 61,134 52,639 86.10% 
Interest Expense 104,771 112,881 (8,110) -7.18% 
General Expenses 100 370 263,048 (162,678} -61.84% 

Total Expenses 12,916,371 12,994,301 (77,930} -0.60% 

(Decrease) Increase in Net Position $ 1,039.921 $ (448,758) $ 1,488.679 -331.73% 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 18,795,632 19,244,390 (448,758} -2.33% 

Adjustment to Beginning Net Position (1,718,725} (1,718,725} 

Net Position, End of Year $18,116.828 $18,795.632 $ (678,804) -3.61% 

This statement excludes HAP Port In Revenue and Expenses of FY 2018 $ 70,280 

FY 2017 $ 65,502 

The maior changes from 2017 to 2018 of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Fund Net Position are: 

• Tenant revenue increased by $1,177,319 or 44.35%. This increase is related to increases in 
HAP payments for the Authority's 667-A units following a rent reasonableness study. 

• Other government grants decreased by $434,644 or 29.07%. This decrease is related to the 
amount of work completed under the state modernization program as expenditures are direct 
reimbursements from the State. 

• HUD capital grants increased by $257,236 or 875.91 %. This increase is related to the amount 
of work completed under the HUD capital grant program as expenditures are direct 
reimbursements from HUD. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

• Other revenue increased by $117,646 or 92.54%. This increase is due to an increase in 
insurance proceeds received for damages sustained at the Ash Street development. 

• Interest income increased by $13,164 or 19 .11 %. This increase is a result of an increase in 
available cash for investing purposes during the year. 

• Depreciation expense decreased by $128,729 or 10.94%. This decrease is due to a decrease in 
depreciable assets at year end. 

• Tenant services increased by $52,639 or 86.10%. This increase is a result of an increase in 
tenant services salaries due to an increase in the budget for licensed social workers. 

• General expenses decreased by $162,678 or 61.84%. This decrease was a result of a decrease 
in development costs related to the Haywood House project. 

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION 

The financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all 
those with an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Amy Zarechian, Executive 
Director, Newton Housing Authority, 82 Lincoln Street, Newton, MA 02461, or call (617) 552-
5501. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

ASSETS 
Current Assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash 
Accounts receivable, net 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets 
Total Current Assets 

Noncurrent Assets 
Restricted cash 
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 

Total Noncurrent Assets 

TOTAL ASSETS 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

LIABILITIES 
Current Liabilities 

Current portion of long term debt 
Accounts payable 
Accounts payable, HUD 
Accounts payable, other government 
Accrued wages and current portion of compensated absences 
Interest payable 
Other current liabilities 
Unearned revenue 
Tenant security deposits 

Total Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Liabilities 
Long term debt, net of current portion 
Accrued compensated absences, net of current portion 
Leasing escrow liability 
Net pension liability 
Total OPEB liability 

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

NET POSITION 
Investment in capital assets 
Restricted: 

Housing assistance payments 
Use-restricted contributions 

Umestricted 

TOT AL NET POSITION 

$ 

$ 

8,213,206 
62,722 

141,026 
93 404 

8,510.358 

4,469 
18,067,722 
18,072,191 

26,582,549 

520 602 

141,889 
191,734 
30,249 
23,493 
63,384 

2,520 
257,500 

76,194 
392 

787 355 

2,022,087 
92,536 

4,469 
3,054,425 
2,761,085 
7,934,602 

8 721 957 

264 366 

13,743,730 

62,330 
2,160,016 
2,150,752 

18,116,828 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

OPERATING REVENUES 
HUD grants 
Tenant rental income 
Other government grants 
Other revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Housing assistance payments 
Administration 
Repair and maintenance 
Utilities 
Depreciation expense 
Insurance expense 
Other general expenses 
Tenant services 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating Income 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Interest and investment revenue 
Interest expense 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income before Capital Grants 

CAPITAL GRANTS 
Other government capital grants 
HUD capital grants 

Total Capital Grants 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year -As Restated 

Net Position, End of Year 

$ 

$ 

8,450,370 
3,831,839 

698,862 
244 771 

13,225,842 

6,342,894 
1,870,565 
1,863,422 
1,163,493 
1,048,198 

205,537 
203,718 
113 773 

12,811,600 

414 242 

82,046 
(104,771) 

(22,725) 

391 517 

361,800 
286 604 
648 404 

1 039 921 

17 076 907 

18 116.828 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
HUD grants 
Other government grants 
Receipts from tenants 
Other operating receipts 
Payments to employees 
Payments to suppliers 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Other government capital grants 
HUD capital grants 
Interest expense 
Payments on long term debt 
Acquisitions of capital assets 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest and dividends received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 
Operating Income 
Adjustments: 

Depreciation 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, tenants 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, other 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, HUD 
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, other government 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets 
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable 
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, HUD 
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable, other government 
(Decrease) increase in compensated absences and accrued wages 
(Decrease) increase in net pension and OPEB liabilities 
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses and other current liabilities 
(Decrease) increase in tenant security deposits 
(Decrease) increase in unearned operating revenue 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Cash and restricted cash per Statement of Net Position: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted cash - current 
Restricted cash - noncurrent 

Total cash and restricted cash per Statement of Net Position 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

8,487,912 
342,754 

3,831,123 
230,975 

(2,384,371) 
(8,953,117) 
1 555 276 

352,473 
286,604 

(105,099) 
(137,745) 
(762,796) 
(366,563) 

82 046 
82 046 

1270759 
7 009 638 

8 280.397 

414,242 

1,048,198 

6,458 
610 

20,175 
(102,916) 

6,818 
(17,429) 
17,367 

(252,328) 
4,559 

153,782 
252,184 

342 
3 214 

1.555 276 

8,213,206 
62,722 
4 469 

8,280,397 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 1- ORGANIZATION 

The Newton Housing Authority (the Authority) was incorporated under the laws of the 
Commonwealth of Massachusetts. The Authority operates under a board of commissioner form 
of government to provide safe and decent housing to low and moderate-income families and 
elderly individuals. 

The Authority maintains its accounting records by program and operates the following 
programs: 

Federal Programs 

Low Rent Public Housing - This program accounts for all activities relating to the leasing 
and operation of apartments in buildings that were constructed and are owned by the 
Authority. These units are rented to low income families and low-income elderly, disabled, 
and special needs individuals. The properties were constructed with grants and or loans 
provided by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). The 
Authority receives grants from HUD to subsidize operating deficits. Tenants are charged 
rents based on a percentage of their income. 

Public Housing Capital Fund - HUD provides grant funds to authorities with Low Rent 
Public Housing units on a formula basis. The funds are predominantly used to make 
physical improvements to buildings and dwelling units owned by the Authority under the 
Low Rent Public Housing Program. A portion of these funds may also be used to support 
operations and to make improvements in the management and operation of the Authority. 

Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher - HUD provides grants to the Authority to subsidize 
rents paid by low income families and individuals who rent dwelling units from private 
landlords. Under this program, qualified applicants are issued vouchers which may be used 
by the applicant to obtain housing in the private rental market. The Authority will subsidize 
the landlord for the difference between the rent requested and the tenant's share of the rent 
not to exceed a predetermined payment standard. 

Section 8 New Construction Program - HUD provides a direct mortgage to a third-party 
owner of a residential rental building. As a condition of the mortgage on the building, the 
owner enters into a long-term contract to rent some or all of the dwelling units to low 
income individuals or families and receive project-based Section 8 rental assistance. Under 
the contract, the owner receives a subsidy equal to the difference between an approved 
contract rent and the tenant's share of the rent determined under HUD Section 8 
regulations. On behalf of HUD, the Authority monitors the compliance with the agreement, 
as well as paying the HAP expense to the owner. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 1-ORGANIZATION (CONTINUED) 

State/Local and Other Programs 

State Consolidated and State Chapter 705 Housing- Under these programs, the Authority 
owns, operates and maintains rental housing acquired with grants from Massachusetts 
Department of Housing & Community Development (DHCD). Dwelling units are leased 
to low income tenants at rates based on their ability to pay. Operations are supported by 
DHCD via operating grants. 

State Chapter 689 Housing - Under this program, the Authority owns operates and 
maintains rental housing acquired with grants from DHCD. The building is generally 
rented to a non-profit corporation who provides health and human resource needs to 
mentally disabled individuals. 

Massachusetts Rental Voucher Program (MRVP) - DHCD provides grants to subsidize 
rents paid by low income families and individuals who rent dwelling units from private 
landlords. Qualified applicants are issued vouchers which may be used by the applicant to 
obtain housing in the private rental market. The Authority subsidizes the landlord for the 
difference between the rent requested and the tenant's share of the rent not to exceed a 
contract amount. 

State Modernization Program - DHCD provides grant funds to authorities with State 
Consolidated units based on the Authority's application and determination of need. The 
funds are predominantly used to make physical improvements to buildings and dwelling 
units owned by the Authority under the State Consolidated Housing Program. 

Authority-Owned Section 8 New Construction- DHCD provides a direct mortgage to the 
Authority as owners of a residential rental building. As a condition of the mortgage on the 
building, the Authority has entered into a long-term contract to rent some or all of the 
dwelling units to low income individuals or families and receive project-based Section 8 
rental assistance from DHCD through a contract between DHCD and HUD. Under the 
contract, the Authority receives a subsidy equal to the difference between an approved 
contract rent and the tenant's share of the rent determined under HUD Section 8 
regulations. 

Business Activities/ City of Newton's Ten Percent Zoning Ordinance - The Authority, 
through the City of Newton's Ten Percent Zoning Ordinance, is the recipient of monies or 
units of housing donated from developers of for-profit housing in Newton. This ordinance 
enables the Authority to broaden the scope of services it provides to the community by 
operating or buying additional affordable housing to lease to low and moderate income 
individuals and families. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY 

The Authority's financial statements include the accounts of all of the Authority's operations. 
The criteria for including organizations as component units within the Authority's reporting 
entity, as set forth in Section 2100 of GASB' s Codification of Governmental Accounting and 
Financial Reporting Standards, include whether: 

• the organization is legally separate ( can sue and be sued in their own name) 
• the Authority holds the corporate powers of the organization 
• the Authority appoints a voting majority of the organization's board 
• the Authority is able to impose its will on the organization 
• the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the Authority 
• there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the Authority 

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Authority has no component units. 

BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND ACCOUNTING 

The Authority is a special-purpose government entity engaged only in business-type activities 
and, as such, the financial statements are presented as a single enterprise fund utilizing the 
accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are recognized when earned and 
expenses when the related liability for goods and services is incurred, regardless of the timing 
of the related cash flows. 

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in accordance with Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). The Authority follows GASB as applied to 
governmental entities. 

The Authority's primary source of nonexchange revenue relates to grants and subsidies. Grants 
and subsidies revenue is recognized at the time eligible program expenses occur and/or the 
Authority has complied with the grant and subsidy requirements, in accordance with GASB 
Statement No. 33, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions. Grants 
received in advance of expenses are recorded as a liability until earned. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 2-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

New Accounting Standards Adopted 

During 2018, the Authority adopted GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB); addresses accounting 
and financial reporting for OPEB that is provided to employees of state and local governmental 
employers. The provisions of this Statement are effective for periods beginning after June 15, 
2017. The adoption of this accounting standard resulted in a net increase in the liability for 
Other Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions of $79,362 Refer to Notes 13 and 16. 

Also during 2018, the Authority adopted the following accounting standards that did not 
impact the Authority's financial statements. 

GASB 
Statement Number 

81 
82 
85 
86 

USE OF ESTIMATES 

Name 
Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements 
Pension Issues 
Omnibus 2017 
Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues 

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires the use of estimates that affect reported 
amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosures. Actual amounts 
could differ from those estimates. 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The Authority considers cash equivalents to be all highly liquid investments with a maturity 
of three months or less when purchased. Also included in cash equivalents are non-negotiable 
certificates of deposits, recorded at cost in accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment 
Pools. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 2-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable from tenants are carried at the original amount billed less an estimate 
made for doubtful accounts based on a review of all outstanding amounts on a monthly basis. 
Management determines the allowance for doubtful accounts by using historical experience 
applied to an aging of accounts receivable. Accounts receivable from tenants are written off 
with board approval when deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously 
written off are recorded when received. Allowances for other non-tenant receivables are 
reviewed annually. See Note 6 for details of accounts receivable and allowances at year end. 

CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets include land, property, furniture, equipment and machinery with initial, 
individual costs that equal or exceed $5,000 and estimated useful lives of more than one year. 
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or 
constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at acquisition value at the time of acquisition. 
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Buildings 
Land and Building Improvements 
Furniture, Equipment and Machinery 

IMPAIRMENT OF CAPITAL ASSETS 

40 years 
15 years 

3-10 years 

Governmental Accounting Standards Board's, Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial 
Reporting for Impairment of Capital Assets and for Insurance Recoveries requires certain note 
disclosures regarding impairments of capital assets. The Authority did not recognize any 
impairments of capital assets in fiscal year 2018. 

COMPENSATED ABSENCES 

The Authority's policy allows employees to earn a maximum of 15 sick days per year, 
commensurate on experience. Any employee who has attained 55 years of age and 10 years of 
services may collect 20% of their accumulated sick leave if they leave the employ of the 
Authority and officially retire with the City retirement board. Employees are eligible to earn 
between 10 and 25 days of vacation based on years of service, employees may carryover a 
maximum of 5 days of vacation into the following year. Total accrued compensated absences 
at December 31, 2018 aggregated $116,073 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSES 

Operating revenue includes operating grants and subsidies, rental income, management 
services provided and all other revenue relating to the provision of safe, decent and affordable 
housing services that do not result from transactions defined as capital and related financing, 
non-capital and related financing or investing activities. Operating expenses include wages, 
housing assistance payments, utilities, maintenance, depreciation of capital assets, 
administrative expenses and all other expenses relating to the provision of safe, decent and 
affordable housing services that do not result from transactions defined as capital and related 
financing, non-capital and related financing or investing activities. 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES AND EXPENSE 

The Authority's nonoperating revenues relate primarily to capital grants and contributions 
provided by HUD and the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, and interest income. For 
reporting purposes, capital grant revenue is recognized when expenditures are incurred, and 
advance receipts are initially recorded as unearned revenue. Nonoperating expenses are 
expenditures derived from transactions other than those associated with the Authority's 
primary housing operations and are reported as incurred. 

ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY 

The Authority's state and federal programs are economically dependent on grants and annual 
contributions from DHCD and HUD, respectively. These programs operate at a loss prior to 
receiving these grants and contributions. 

PENSIONS 

The fiduciary net position of the retirement system has been determined using the flow of 
economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of accounting as reported by the 
retirement system. The same basis was applied for purposes of measuring the net pension 
liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, 
pension expense, and additions to/deductions from the retirement system's fiduciary net 
position. 

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, have been determined by 
an actuarial valuation conducted by the Authority and are accounted for in accordance with the 
requirements of GASB Statement No. 75 Accounting and Financial Reporting for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB). 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 2-SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

Deferred outflows of resources are the consumption of net position by the Authority that is 
applicable to a future reporting period. Deferred inflows of resources are the acquisition of net 
position by the Authority that is applicable to a future reporting period. These consist of the 
deferral of the recognition of revenues and expenses until the future period to which the 
outflows and inflows are related. The Authority's deferred outflows and inflows ofresources 
are either related to pension (See Note 12) or related to OPEB (See Note 13). The following is 
a summary of deferred outflows and inflows of resources at December 31, 2018: 

Related to Pensions 
Related to OPEB 
Total 

APPLICATION OF RESOURCES 

Deferred Outflows 
of Resources 

$ 458,190 
62 412 

$ 520,602 

Deferred Inflows 
of Resources 

$ 228,114 
36 252 

$ 264,366 

The Authority would first apply restricted resources when an expense is incurred for which 
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available. 

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Management has evaluated subsequent events through September 30, 2019, which is the date 
these financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring 
recognition or disclosure as of December 31, 2018 have been incorporated into these financial 
statements. 

NOTE 3 - NET POSITION 

Net position represents the cumulative effect of revenue and expenses. It is also the difference 
between the sum of assets and deferred outflows less the sum ofliabilities and deferred inflows. 
Net position is reported in three broad categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets consists of all capital assets, reduced by accumulated 
depreciation, the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes or other borrowing 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted Net Position consists of restricted assets, when constraints are placed on the 
assets by creditors (such as debt covenants), grantors, contributors, laws, regulations, etc. 
At December 31, 2018, restrictions of $62,330, represent the net position restricted by 
HUD related to the Housing Choice Voucher Program to be used for future HAP payments. 
Restrictions of $2,160,016 represent the value of forgivable loans assumed by the 
Authority for which the Authority has agreed to the deed restrictions limiting the use of the 
property for affordable housing purposes (see Note 10). 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 3-NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

Unrestricted Net Position is designed to represent the net available (non-capital) assets, for 
the entire Authority. 

NOTE 4 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

The Authority has adopted HUD's Investment Regulation PIH 1996-33 as its investment 
policy. HUD regulations require that all HUD deposits in financial institutions and investments 
be fully insured or collateralized, by U.S. Government obligations that have a fair value of not 
less than the principal amount of the deposits. The policy also requires that investments not 
have a maturity period longer than three years. 

Custodial Credit Risk - Cash Deposits 
In the case of cash deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the Authority's 
deposits may not be returned to it. The Authority does not have a formal policy for custodial 
credit risk, except ensuring that it follows the HUD regulations for federal deposits as detailed 
in a prior paragraph. At December 31, 2018, the Authority's cash deposits of $8,280,397 were 
fully insured or collateralized. 

NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED CASH 

The Authority's restricted cash balance consists of funds restricted for future HAP payments, 
funds held in escrow related to an organization leasing property from the Authority as well as 
funds designated for tenant security deposits. These amounts support either a corresponding 
liability or restricted net position. At December 31, 2018, restricted cash was categorized as 
follows: 

Category of Restriction 

Housing assistance payments 
Leasing escrow 
Tenant security deposits 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

62,330 
4,469 

392 

67,191 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 6 -ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

The following is a listing of receivables for the Authority including the applicable allowances 
for uncollectible accounts at December 31, 2018. 

Category of Receivable 

Other Government 
PHA Projects 
Tenants 

Allowance - Tenants 

Net Receivables 

NOTE 7 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

$ 

$ 

Amount 

111,324 
206 

117 122 
228,652 
(87,626) 

141.026 

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets and related accumulated depreciation. 

1/1/2018 Increases Decreases 12/31/2018 
Capital assets not being depreciated 

Land $ 5,961,657 $ $ 5,961,657 
Construction in Progress 1,454,288 596 108 2,050,396 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 7 415 945 596 108 8,012,053 

Other Capital Assets 
Buildings 33,483,959 158,950 33,642,909 
Furniture, equipment & machinery 195 561 7 738 (89,238) 114 061 

Total other capital assets 33,679,520 166 688 (89,238) 33,756,970 

Less accumulated depreciation 
Buildings 22,578,742 1,037,981 23,616,723 
Furniture, equipment & machinery 163 599 10 217 (89,238) 84 578 

Total accumulated depreciation 22,742,341 1048198 (89,238) 23,701,301 

Capital Assets Net $ 18.353.124 $ (285,402) $ $ I 8,067.722 

Depreciation expense was charged to: 
Federal Public Housing $ 470,682 
State/Local Programs $ 344,653 
Business Activities $ 232,863 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 8- NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 

Noncurrent liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2018 is as follows: 

Amount due 
1/1/2018 Additions Reductions 12/31/2018 within one ~ear 

Compensated Absences $ 113,399 $ 167,547 $ (164,873) $ 116,073 $ 23,537 
Leasing Escrow 9,785 (5,316) 4,469 
Net Pension Liability 3,320,190 (265,765) 3,054,425 
Total OPEB Liability 2,681,723 79 362 2,761,085 

Total $ 6 125 027 $ 246.909 $ (435,954) $ 5.936.052 $ 23.537 

NOTE 9 - LONG TER.M DEBT 

Long term debt activity for the year ended December 31, 2018 is as follows: 

Amount due 
1/1/2018 Additions Reductions 12/31/2018 within one year 

Notes Payable $ 2.301. 721 ==$====== $ 037.745) $ 2,163.976 $ 141,889 

The Authority constructed an elderly housing project in 1981. Funds to construct the project 
were provided by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts through a State bond issue, the 
proceeds of which were granted to the Authority. The grant received by the Authority was 
$1,176,000. The project is backed by a Federal Section 8 housing assistance payments contract 
held by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts. Under the terms of this contract the Authority 
receives a housing assistance payment so that the total rent received for each unit is equivalent 
to a published fair market rent. The Authority is making a payment to the Commonwealth for 
$7,308 per month from the housing assistance payment that it receives. The purpose of this 
payment is to repay the original $1,176,000 grant plus interest over a 40-year period. The 
payments to the Commonwealth will end in 2021. Accordingly, the grant has been treated as a 
debt instrument for financial reporting purposes. The interest rate implicit in the payments is 
7.0% per annum. For the year ended December 31, 2018, interest expense incurred on this loan 
was $18,391. The outstanding principal balance at December 31, 2018 was $230,753. 

Through debt financing and funding provided by the City of Newton's Ten Percent Zoning 
Ordinance, as described in Note 1, the Authority has acquired various rental properties in the 
City of Newton. All mortgage notes used to finance the acquisition of these properties are held 
with local lending institutions and are collateralized by deeds of trust on real property. These 
notes have terms of 25 to 30 years, accrue interest at rates of 1.00% to 4.75% per annum, and 
are payable in equal monthly installments of principal and interest; aggregating $16,302 per 
month. 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 9- LONG TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, interest expense incurred on these loans was $86,380. 
The outstanding principal balance on the mortgage notes at December 31, 2018 was 
$1,933,223. 

The debt will be amortized as follows: 

Principal Interest 
Year Payments Payments Total 

2019 $ 141,889 $ 114,833 $ 256,722 
2020 150,648 106,074 256,722 
2021 148,343 96,737 245,080 
2022 78,847 90,179 169,026 
2023 82,875 86,151 169,026 

2024 - 2028 483,248 361,882 845,130 
2029 - 2033 624,357 220,773 845,130 
2034 - 2038 420,114 67,211 487,325 

2039 33 655 3 216 36 871 

Total $ 2.163.976 $ 1,147.056 $ 3.311.032 

NOTE 10- CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 

In 2008, the Authority acquired properties located at 45 Pelham Street and 390 Newtonville 
A venue through a deal in which the Authority assumed the outstanding loans of the previous 
owner. The loans require the Authority to comply with affordability covenants throughout the 
terms of loans. Because the Authority has the intent and ability to maintain affordability 
throughout the terms of the loans, management does not expect that DHCD, CED AC or the 
City of Newton will assert its right of repayment under these loan agreements; as such, these 
loans were accounted for as revenue in the year they were assumed and now classified as 
restricted net position on the Statement of Net Position. Additional terms of these loans are as 
follows: 

Original Loan Principal Interest Maturity 
Lender Amount Outstanding Rate Date 

Community Economic Development Assistance 
Corporation (CEDAC) Housing Innovation Fund $ 750,000 $ 750,000 0% 2/10/2035 
DHCD Affordable Housing Trust Fund $ 240,778 $ 240,778 0% 2/10/2035 
Newton Community Development Authority $ 550,000 $ 550,000 0% 2/10/2055 
Newton Community Development Authority $ 100,000 $ 100,000 0% 2/10/2055 
City of Newton: Community Preservation Funding $ 211,936 $ 211,936 0% 3/5/2034 
City of Newton: Community Preservation Funding $ 100,000 $ 100,000 0% 2/10/2035 
Newton Loan Program $ 207,302 $ 207,302 0% 2/10/2035 

$ 2.160.016 $ 2.160.016 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 11-REALESTATE TAXES 

Property owned by the Authority is exempt from local real estate taxes. The Authority has an 
agreement with the City of Newton under which it is exempt from any payment in lieu of taxes 
to the City. 

NOTE 12 - COST-SHARING DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 

PLAN DESCRIPTION 

The Authority provides pension benefits to certain employees through the Newton 
Contributory Retirement System (NCRS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee 
retirement system regulated by Public Employee Retirement Administration Commission 
(PERAC). The plan is a defined benefit plan. Participation is mandatory for all full time 
employees of the Authority. The retirement plan is a pooled risk type of plan. Under this type 
of plan, funding is determined based on all employees covered for all employing units. The 
funding liabilities are shared by each employing unit pro-rata based on the number of 
employees in the employing unit. Since the Authority's share of the net pension liability is not 
based on their employees, pension expense is determined by the total required payment to be 
made to the retirement plan for the year. The NCRS issues a publicly available financial report 
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. This report may be 
obtained by writing to NCRS, 1000 Commonwealth Avenue, Newton Centre, MA 02459 or 
by calling ( 61 7) 796-109 5. 

PLAN MEMBERSHIP 

At December 31, 2018, there are 22 active employees enrolled in the plan. 

SIGNIFICANT PLAN PROVISIONS AND REQUIREMENTS 

State law establishes benefit provisions and contribution requirements of the NCRS. 
Employees who have at least 10 years of longevity and have attained 55 years of age are 
eligible to receive retirement benefits. Retired employees receive an allowance based upon the 
average of their three highest consecutive salary years of service multiplied by (1) the number 
of years and full months of creditable service at the time of retirement and (2) a percentage 
based on age at retirement in accordance with a schedule provided by state law. Assuming 
normal retirement at age 65, this percentage is 2.5%, which is reduced for individuals who 
retire prior to age 65 to reflect the longer payout period. Employees may elect early retirement 
after 20 years of service or at any time after attaining age 55 with 10 years of eligible service. 
Plan members who become permanently and totally disabled may be eligible to receive a 
disability retirement allowance. The amount of benefits to be received depends on several 
factors, including the member's age, compensation, veteran status, years of creditable service, 
and whether or not the disability is work-related. In addition, certain death benefits exist for 
beneficiaries of employees who die in active service. 
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DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 12-CosT-SHARING DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

FUNDING POLICY 

Depending on their employment date, active Plan members must contribute either 5%, 7%, 
8%, or 9% of their gross regular compensation. Members hired after December 31, 1978 must 
contribute an additional 2% of regular compensation in excess of $30,000. These deductions 
earn interest at a rate determined by PERAC that vests based upon years of service. Member 
employers are required to contribute the remaining amounts necessary to finance benefits, 
except for certain cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) granted before July 1, 1998, which are 
reimbursed by the Commonwealth. The current and two preceding years' apportionment of the 
annual pension cost between the employers required the Authority to contribute approximately 
0.99% of the total. The Authority's required and actual contributions to NCRS for the year 
ended December 31, 2018 were $292,274. Employee contributions for the same period were 
$159,458. 

PENSION LIABILITIES 

At December 31, 2018, the Authority reported a liability of $3,054,425 for its proportionate 
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 
2017, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined 
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Authority's proportion of the net pension liability 
was based on a projection of the Authority's long-term share of contributions to the pension 
plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially 
determined. 

PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Authority recognized pension expense of $332,709. 
The deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions after the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent year. 
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NOTE 12-COST-SHARING DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

PENSION EXPENSE AND DEFERRED INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES (CONTINUED) 

At December 31, 2018, the Authority reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred 
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 45,943 $ 44,324 

Changes of assumptions 108,267 

Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension 
147,179 

plan investments 

Changes in proportion and differences between contributions 
11,706 36,611 

and proportionate share of contributions 

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 292 274 

Total $ 458,190 $ 228,114 

These amounts will be recognized as expense, or as a reduction of expense, as follows: 

Year 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows 

(Inflows) of 
Resources 

338,035 
(11,161) 
(41,367) 
(55,431) 

230.076 
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NOTE 12-COST-SHARING DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

ACTUARIAL METHODS & ASSUMPTIONS 

The total pension liability in the December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation was determined using 
the following actuarial methods and assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 

Valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Investment rate of return 

Discount rate 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

December 31, 2017 

Entry Age Normal Cost Method 

7.25% 

7.25% 

2.50% 

Ranging from 3.50% to 8.00% per year based upon years of 
service 

Cost ofliving adjustments 3.00% on the first $12,000 in benefits 

Mortality rates Pre-Retirement - RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table 
projected generationally with Scale MP-2017. 

Healthy Retiree - RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant 
Mortality Table projected generationally with Scale MP-
2017. 

Disabled Retiree - RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant 
Mortality Table set forward one year and projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2017. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a 
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return 
( expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each 
major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return 
by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage 
and by adding expected inflation. 
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NOTE 12-COST-SHARING DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

ACTUARIAL METHODS & ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED) 

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class are summarized in the following table: 

Asset Class 

Domestic Equity 
International Equity - Developed Markets 
International Equity - Emerging Markets 
Core Fixed Income 
High-Yield Fixed Income 
Real Estate 
Commodities 
Hedge Funds 
Private Equity 

DISCOUNT RATE 

Target Expected 
Allocation Rate of Return 

17.50% 6.15% 
15.50% 7.11% 
6.00% 9.41% 
12.00% 1.68% 
10.00% 4.13% 
10.00% 4.90% 
4.00% 4.71% 
13.00% 3.94% 
12.00% 10.28% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25 percent. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be 
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from the Authority will be made at 
contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension 
plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit 
payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of 
return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to 
determine the total pension liability. 

SENSITIVITY OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE 

The following presents the Authority's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the Authority's proportionate 
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is !­
percentage-point lower (6.25 percent) or I-percentage-point higher (8.25 percent) than the 
current rate: 

Net pension liability 

1% Decrease 
6.25% 

$ 3,766,015 $ 

Current 
Discount 

7.25% 
1% Increase 

8.25% 

3,054,425 ='$=====2,"=45"""'3~,6~0;,,e,7 
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NOTE 12-COST-SHARING DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED) 

PENSION PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the 
separately issued NCRS financial report. 

PAYABLES TO THE PENSION PLAN 

As of December 31, 2018, the Authority had no outstanding payables to NCRS. 

NOTE 13 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) 

PLAN DESCRIPTION AND BENEFITS PROVIDED 

The Authority's defined benefit OPEB plan provides OPEB for all permanent full-time 
employees of the Authority. The OPEB plan is a single employer defined benefit OPEB plan 
administered by the Authority. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in 
paragraph 4 of GASB statement 75. 

The Authority provides comprehensive medical insurance, both with and without Medicare 
coordination, and life insurance to its employees who meet certain eligibility requirements. 
Employees are eligible for postretirement benefits if he/she has reached the age of 55 as an 
active employee and completed 10 years of service. 

All active employees who retire from the Authority and meet the eligibility criteria will receive 
these benefits. The duration of these benefits is for the employee's lifetime. Under this cost 
sharing plan, these benefits cover 20% of premiums for Medical for those who retire on or 
after 10/1/2009 (15% for those who retired after 7/1/1994 but before 10/1/2009, and 10% for 
all others) for both individuals and family members (percentages represent the employees' 
portion). 

The face value of each life insurance policy is $5,000. Life insurance benefits do not apply to 
family members, this benefit covers 20% of premiums for Medical for those who retire on or 
after 10/1/2009 (15% for those who retired after 7/1/1994 but before 10/1/2009, and 10% for 
all others) for individuals. 

PLAN MEMBERSHIP 

At December 31, 2018, there are 16 active employees and 11 retired employees enrolled in the 
plan. 
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NOTE 13 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

TOTAL OPED LIABILITY 

The Authority's total OPEB liability of$2,761,085 was measured as of December 31, 2018 
and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2017. 

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS 

The total O PEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 201 7, 
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, 
unless otherwise specified. 

Valuation Date: Actuarially Determined Contribution was calculated as of December 31, 
2017. 

Actuarial Cost Method: Individual Entry Age Normal 

Investment Rate of Return: 6.50%, net of OPEB plan investment, including inflation 

Municipal Bond Rate: 3 .16% as of December 31, 2017 (Source: S&P Municipal Bond 20-
Y ear High Grade Index - SAPIHG) 

Discount Rate: 3.25%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, including inflation. 

Inflation: 2.75 % as of December 31, 2017 and for future periods 

Salary Increase: 3.00% annually as of December 31, 2017 and for future periods 

Cost of Living Adjustment: Not Applicable 

Pre-Retirement Mortality: RP 2000 Employees Mortality Table projected generationally 
with scale BB and a base year 2009 for males and females. 

Post-Retirement Mortality: RP 2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected 
generationally with scale BB and a base year 2009 for males and females. 

Disabled Mortality: RP 2000 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally 
with scale BB and a base year 2012 for males and females. 

Mortality Experience Study: The mortality assumptions reflect PERAC's recent experience 
analysis published in 2014 (based on the years 2006-2011), updated to reflect data through 
January 1, 2015 for post-retirement mortality, and professional judgement. As such, 
mortality assumptions reflect observed current mortality as well as expected mortality 
improvements. 
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NOTE 13- OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

ACTUARIAL METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS (CONTINUED} 

Healthcare Trend: It is assumed that healthcare costs will increases at a rate of 5.0% per 
annum 

Withdrawal Rates: Plan participants are expected to withdraw from the plan at a decreasing 
rate, based on years of service and age, from '27.0% at age 20 and 0-4 years of service to 
3 .50% at age 60 and 1 0+ years of service. 

Retirement Rates: Plan participants are expected to retire at an increasing rate based on age 
and gender. Males are expected to retire at a rate of 1 % for those aged 50 years, to 100% for 
those aged 70 years. Females are expected to retire at a rate of 1.5% for those aged 50 years, 
to 100% for those aged 70 years. 

CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY 

Balance at beginning of year 
Changes for the year: 

Service cost 
Interest 
Changes of benefit terms 
Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes of Assumptions 
Benefit payments 

Net Changes 
Balance at end of year 

$ 

$ 

2,681,723 

88,984 
89,042 

(36,252) 

(62,412) 
79 362 

2,761.085 

SENSITIVITY OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE DISCOUNT RATE 

The following table presents the Plan's total OPEB liability, calculated using the discount rate 
of 3.25% as well as what the total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount 
rate that is 1 percentage-point lower (2.25%) or 1 percentage-point higher (4.25%) than the 
current rate. 

Total OPEB liability $ 

1% Decrease 
2.25% 

3.267.771 $ 

Current 
Discount 

3.25% 
1 % Increase 

4.25% 

2,761.085 $ 2,361,995 
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NOTE 13- OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

SENSITIVITY OF THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY TO CHANGES IN THE HEALTHCARE TREND 

RATE 

The following table presents the net other postemployment benefit liability, calculated the 
healthcare trend rate if it was 1 percentage-point lower or 1 percentage-point higher than the 
current rate. 

Current 
1% Decrease Trend 1% Increase 

4.00% 5.00% 6.00% 

Total OPEB liability $ 212231239 $ 217611085 $ 314641620 

OPEB EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO 

OPEB 

For the year ended December 31, 2018, the Authority recognized OPEB expenses of$115,614. 
The deferred outflows of resources resulting from contributions after the measurement date 
will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent year. At 
December 31, 2018, the Authority reported deferred outflows and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 
Outflows of Inflows of 
Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ $ 36,252 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan 
investments 
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 62 412 

Total $ 62A12 $ 361252 
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NOTE 13- OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN PENSIONS (OPEB) (CONTINUED) 

OPED EXPENSE AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES RELATED TO 

OPED (CONTINUED} 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related 
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Year 

2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 
2023 

Thereafter 

Total 

NOTE 14- OTHER RETIREMENT PLANS 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows 

(Inflows) of 
Resources 

26,160 

26.160 

The Authority provides to employees a separate deferred compensation plan in accordance 
with IRC §457. The plan is open to all employees. Employee contributions for 2018 were 
$97,209. There were no employer contributions. 

NOTE 15- RISK MANAGEMENT 

Litigation 
The Authority is contingently liable with respect to lawsuits and other claims incidental to the 
ordinary course of its operations. Claims covered by the risk management program are 
reviewed and losses are accrued as required in the judgment of management. In the opinion of 
management, other than the matter disclosed below, the ultimate disposition of lawsuits and 
claims will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Authority. 

In December 2018, the Authority settled litigation brought against the Authority by a former 
employee for discrimination and retaliation. The Authority settled with this employee for back 
wages and associated legal fees aggregating $725,000. Per the agreement, $467,500 was paid 
in 2018 and $257,500 has been accrued as of December 31, 2018. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 15-RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 

Grants 
Amounts received or receivable from the granter agencies are subject to audit and adjustment 
by granter agencies. If expenditures are disallowed as a result of these audits, the claims for 
reimbursement to the granter agency would become a liability of the Authority. In the opinion 
of management, any such adjustments would not be significant. 

NOTE 16-ADOPTION OF NEW ACCOUNTING STANDARD 

In 2018, the Authority adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) No. 75, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, 
which replaces GASB 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for 
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, for measuring and reporting other post­
employment benefits (OPEB). GASB 75 requires the OPEB liability to be reported on the face 
of the financial statements rather than in the accompanying notes, as previously required by 
GASB 45. In addition, the net OPEB obligation previously stated by GASB 45 has been 
removed. As a result, the Authority has restated the net position as of January 1, 2018 to comply 
with the adoption requirement of GASB 75 as follows: 

Beginning Net Position - As Previously Stated 

Removal of net OPEB Obligation under GASB 45 
Addition of OPEB Liability for adoption of GASB 75 

Total Restatement 

Beginning Net Position - Restated 

$ 

$ 

18,795,632 

902,852 
(2,621,577) 
(1,718,725) 

i 7,076.907 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

LAST FISCAL YEAR 

Total OPEB Liability 
Service cost 
Interest 
Changes of benefit terms 
Difference between expected and actual experience 
Changes of Assumptions 
Benefit payments 

Net Change in Total Pension Liability 

Total OPEB Liability- Beginning 

Total OPEB Liability- Ending 

Covered Payroll 

Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 

The Schedule is intended to present information for 10 years, additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2018 

88,984 
89,042 

(36,252) 

(62,412) 
79 362 

2,681,723 

2,761.085 

1,683,461 

164.01 % 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF THE PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 
NEWTON CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

LAST 4 FISCAL YEARS 

For the Measurement Date ended December 31, 2017 2016 2015 

Proportion of the net pension liability 0.991% 1.006% 0.999% 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 3,054,425 $ 3,320,190 $ 3,200,945 

Covered payroll $ 1,377,533 $ 1,164,687 $ 1,311,668 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage of covered 
payroll 221.7% 285.1% 244.0% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 53.26% 48.10% 47.51 % 

The Schedule is intended to present information for 10 years, additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

2014 

0.974% 

$ 2,937,454 

$ 1,375,540 

213.5% 

49.35% 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
NEWTON CONTRIBUTORY RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

LAST 4 FISCAL YEARS 

For the Measurement Date ended December 31, 

Contractually required contribution 

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 

Contribution deficiency 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

$ 255,988 $ 237,117 $ 216,585 $ 194,483 

255,988 237 117 216,585 194 483 

$ $ $ =$===== 

$ 1,377,533 $ 1,164,687 $ 1,311,668 $ 1,375,540 

18.58% 20.36% 16.51 % 14.14% 

The Schedule is intended to present information for 10 years, additional years will be displayed as they become available. 

See Notes to Required Supplementary Information. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 1- OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS OTHER THAN PENSIONS 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

The Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios details the Plan's 
other postemployment benefit liability and the covered employee payroll. It demonstrates the 
Plan's total liability and the Plan's liability as a percentage of covered payroll. 

JO-YEAR TREND INFORMATION 

The Schedule of Changes in the Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios is intended to present 
information for 10 years. Until a 10-year trend is compiled, information is presented for those 
years in which information is available. 

CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS 

Effective December 31, 2018 
• The mortality table was updated from the RP-2000 Mortality Table projected to 2017 to 

RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant mortality Table projected generationally with scale BB and 
a base year 2009 for males and females. 

• Discount rate is 3.25%, previously 4.00% 

CHANGES IN BENEFIT TERMS 

There were no changes in benefit terms from the prior measurement report. 

NOTE 2- PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES 

DESCRIPTION OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

The Schedule of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability presents multi-year trend 
information on the Authority's share of the Net Pension Liability and related ratios. 

The Schedule of Contributions presents multiyear trend information for the Authority's 
required and actual contributions relating to the pension plan. 

10-YEAR TREND INFORMATION 

The Schedules of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and the Schedule of 
Contributions are intended to present information for 10 years. Until a 10-year trend is 
compiled, information is presented for those years in which information is available. 

CHANGES IN BENEFIT TERMS 

There were no changes in benefit terms from the prior measurement report. 

CHANGES IN ASSUMPTIONS 

The Investment return assumption was decreased from 7.50% to 7.25% effective in the 
December 31, 2017 actuarial valuation. The mortality assumption tables were also updated 
from the RP-2000 mortality tables to the blue collar mortality tables projected generationally 
with scale MP-2017. 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

FDS Housing 
Line Choice 
Item Descriotion MA036000001 MA036000002 MA036000003 AMPs Vouchers 

111 Cash - Unrestricted 2,401,098 142,916 310,793 2,854,807 461,290 
113 Cash - Other Restricted - - - - 62,330 
114 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits - - - - -
100 Total Cash 2,401,098 142,916 310,793 2,854,807 523,620 

121 Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects - - - - 206 
124 Accounts Receivable - Other Government - - - - -
126 Accounts Receivable - Tenants 30,504 6,041 2,481 39,026 -

126.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants (27,793) (3,644) (748) (32,185) -
128 Fraud Recovery 6,075 829 1,476 8,380 -

128.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud (6,075) (829) (1,476) (8,380) -
120 Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 2,711 2,397 1,733 6,841 206 

142 Preoaid Exoenses and Other Assets 35,229 4,765 5,296 45,290 5,534 
150 Total Current Assets 2,439,038 150,078 317,822 2,906,938 529,360 

161 Land 386,918 432,000 241,800 1,060,718 -
162 Buildings 10,884,576 1,620,000 919,347 13,423,923 -
164 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration 56,896 12,107 12,106 81,109 -
166 Accumulated Depreciation (8,908,742) (1,519,843) (922,366) (11,350,951) -
167 Construction in Progress 390,404 - - 390,404 -
160 Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 2,810,052 544,264 250,887 3,605,203 -

180 Total Non-Current Assets 2,810,052 544,264 250,887 3,605,203 -

200 Deferred Outflow of Resources 202,986 29,728 28,392 261,106 67,813 

290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources 5,452,076 724,070 597,101 6,773,247 597,173 

312 Accounts Payable <= 90 Days 79,265 9,996 12,180 101,441 15,351 
321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Payable 15,976 2,090 2,128 20,194 5,836 
322 Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion 8,851 1,220 1,230 11,301 3,363 
325 Accrued Interest Payable - - - - -
331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs - - - - -
333 Accounts Payable - Other Government - - - - -
341 Tenant Security Deposits - - - - -
342 Unearned Revenue 14,366 4,875 2,699 21,940 -
343 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue - - - - -
345 Other Current Liabilities - - - - -
310 Total Current Liabilities 118,458 18,181 18,237 154,876 24,550 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

FDS Housing 
Line Choice 
Item Description MA036000001 MA036000002 MA036000003 AMPs Vouchers 

351 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue - - - - -
353 Non-current Liabilities - Other - - - - -
354 Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current 30,217 4,728 4,728 39,673 19,805 
357 Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities 2,304,229 301,180 299,133 2,904,542 785,969 
350 Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,334,446 305,908 303,861 2,944,215 805,774 

300 Total Liabilities 2,452,904 324,089 322,098 3,099,091 830,324 

400 Deferred Inflow of Resources 108,019 14,363 14,333 136,715 38,123 

508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets 2,810,052 544,264 250,887 3,605,203 -
511.4 Restricted Net Position - - - - 62,330 
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position 81,101 (158,646) 9,783 (67,762) (333,604) 
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/ Position 2,891,153 385,618 260,670 3,537,441 (271,274) 

600 Total Liab., Def. Inflow of Res., and Equity - Net Assets / Position 5,452,076 724,070 597,101 6,773,247 597,173 

70300 Net Tenant Rental Revenue 822,143 118,124 170,839 1,111,106 -
70500 Total Tenant Revenue 822,143 118,124 170,839 1,111,106 -

70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants 1,089,493 147,091 140,794 1,377,378 6,941,797 
70610 Capital Grants 286,604 - - 286,604 -
70700 Total Fee Revenue - - - - -

70800 Other Government Grants - - - - -
71100 Investment Income - Unrestricted 31,727 71 666 32,464 2,824 
71400 Fraud Recovery - - - - -
71500 Other Revenue 133,996 7,877 5,188 147,061 74,430 

70000 Total Revenue 2,363,963 273,163 317,487 2,954,613 7,019,051 

91100 Administrative Salaries 312,029 35,124 34,194 381,347 245,623 

91200 Auditing Fees 2,434 562 562 3,558 2,527 

91500 Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative 195,868 22,559 24,026 242,453 117,498 

91600 Office Expenses 37,620 6,405 3,891 47,916 69,941 

91700 Legal Expense 18,218 8,753 104 27,075 2,869 
91800 Travel 2,772 628 628 4,028 7,692 
91900 Other 7,166 1,079 1,204 9,449 37,892 

91000 Total Operating - Administrative 576,107 75,110 64,609 715,826 484,042 

92100 Tenant Services - Salaries 70,000 6,586 8,233 84,819 -
92300 Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services 20,117 1,852 2,674 24,643 -
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

FDS Housing 
Line Choice 
Item Description MA036000001 MA036000002 MA036000003 AMPs Vouchers 

92500 Total Tenant Services 90,117 8,438 10,907 109,462 -

93100 Water 205,093 56,723 26,576 288,392 -
93200 Electricity 174,871 26,942 71,728 273,541 -
93300 Gas 199,815 18,713 - 218,528 -
93000 Total Utilities 579,779 102,378 98,304 780,461 -

94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Ooerations - Labor 319,368 50,904 50,642 420,914 -
94200 Ordinarv Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other 41,874 6,598 7,737 56,209 -
94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts 73,431 25,791 13,762 112,984 -
94500 Employee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance 91,780 14,317 16,448 122,545 -
94000 Total Maintenance 526,453 97,610 88,589 712,652 -

95000 Total Protective Services - - - - -

96110 Prooertvinsurance 49,925 6,757 8,017 64,699 -
96120 Liabilitv Insurance 3,975 1,650 1,125 6,750 18,385 
96130 Workmen's Compensation 20,938 3,332 3,843 28,113 2,455 
96140 All Other Insurance 6,640 - - 6,640 -
96100 Total insurance Premiums 81,478 11,739 12,985 106,202 20,840 

96200 Other General Expenses - - - - 4,331 
96210 Compensated Absences 950 884 1 1,835 88 
96400 Bad debt - Tenant Rents 1 1 39 41 -
96000 Total Other General Expenses 951 885 40 1,876 4,419 

96710 Interest of Mortgage ( or Bonds) Payable - - - - -
96700 Total Interest Exoense and Amortization Cost - - - - -

96900 Total Ooerating Expenses 1,854,885 296,160 275,434 2,426,479 509,301 

97000 Excess of Ooerating Revenue over Ooerating Exoenses 509,078 (22,997) 42,053 528,134 6,509,750 

97100 Extraordinary Maintenance 28,423 20,201 1,940 50,564 -
97200 Casualty Losses - Non-caoitalized 103,348 - - 103,348 -
97300 Housing Assistance Payments - - - - 6,374,283 
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - 70,280 
97400 Depreciation Exoense 426,500 41,921 2,261 470,682 -
90000 Total Expenses 2,413,156 358,282 279,635 3,051,073 6,953,864 

10100 Total Other financing Sources (Uses) - - - - -
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

FDS Housing 
Line Choice 
Item Description MA036000001 MA036000002 MA036000003 AMPs Vouchers 

10000 Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses (49,193) (85,119) 37,852 (96,460) 65,187 

11020 Required Annual Debt Principal Payments - - - - -
11030 Beginning Equity 3,647,154 564,393 316,864 4,528,411 (89,713) 
11040 Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors (706,808) (93,656) (94,046) (894,510) (246,748) 
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - - - (333,604) 
11180 Housing Assistance Payments Equity - - - - 62,330 
11190 Unit Months Available 2,712 432 432 3,576 5,134 
11210 Number of Unit Months Leased 2,643 401 426 3,470 5,084 
11620 Building Purchases 286,604 - - 286,604 -
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

FDS N/C SIR 
Line Section 8 Business 
Item Descriotion Programs Activities State/Local Eliminations Total 

111 Cash - Unrestricted 276,547 1,137,794 3,482,768 - 8,213,206 
113 Cash - Other Restricted - - 4,469 - 66,799 
114 Cash - Tenant Security Deposits - - 392 - 392 
100 Total Cash 276,547 1,137,794 3,487,629 - 8,280,397 

121 Accounts Receivable - PHA Projects - - - - 206 
124 Accounts Receivable - Other Government - - 111,324 - 111,324 
126 Accounts Receivable - Tenants - 22,338 41,850 - 103,214 

126.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts -Tenants - (I 7,490) (24,043) - (73,718) 
128 Fraud Recovery - - 5,528 - 13,908 

128.1 Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - Fraud - - (5,528) - {13,908) 
120 Total Receivables, Net of Allowances for Doubtful Accounts - 4,848 129,131 - 141,026 

142 Preoaid Exoenses and Other Assets - 14,784 27,796 - 93,404 
150 Total Current Assets 276,547 1,157,426 3,644,556 - 8,514,827 

161 Land - 2,471,307 2,429,632 - 5,961,657 
162 Buildings - 8,141,593 12,077,393 - 33,642,909 
164 Furniture, Equipment & Machinery - Administration - 4,210 28,742 - ll4,061 
166 Accumulated Depreciation - (2,405,322) (9,945,028) - (23,701,301) 
167 Construction in Progress - 415,520 1,244,472 - 2,050,396 
160 Total Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation - 8,627,308 5,835,211 - 18,067,722 

180 Total Non-Current Assets - 8,627,308 5,835,211 - 18,067,722 

200 Deferred Outflow of Resources 5,497 47,130 139,056 - 520,602 

290 Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources 282,044 9,831,864 9,618,823 - 27,103,151 

312 Accounts Payable <= 90 Davs 739 17,602 56,601 - 191,734 
321 Accrued Wage/Payroll Taxes Pavable 292 3,543 9,982 - 39,847 
322 Accrued Compensated Absences - Current Portion 145 1,894 6,834 - 23,537 

325 Accrued Interest Payable - 1,174 1,346 - 2,520 

331 Accounts Payable - HUD PHA Programs 30,249 - - - 30,249 
333 Accounts Pavable - Other Government - - 23,493 - 23,493 
341 Tenant Security Deposits - - 392 - 392 
342 Unearned Revenue - 4,493 49,761 - 76,194 
343 Current Portion of Long-term Debt - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue - 68,005 73,884 - 141,889 
345 Other Current Liabilities - - 257,500 - 257,500 
310 Total Current Liabilities 31,425 96,711 479,793 - 787,355 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

FDS N/CS/R 
Line Section 8 Business 
Item Description Proe:rams Activities State/Local Eliminations Total 

351 Long-term Debt, Net of Current - Capital Projects/Mortgage Revenue - 1,865,218 156,869 - 2,022,087 
353 Non-current Liabilities - Other - - 4,469 - 4,469 
354 Accrued Compensated Absences - Non Current 757 7,069 25,232 - 92,536 
357 Accrued Pension and OPEB Liabilities 56,898 495,870 1,572,231 - 5,815,510 
350 Total Non-Current Liabilities 57,655 2,368,157 1,758,801 - 7,934,602 

300 Total Liabilities 89,080 2,464,868 2,238,594 - 8,721,957 

400 Deferred Inflow of Resources 1,915 18,571 69,042 - 264,366 

508.4 Net Investment in Capital Assets - 4,534,069 5,604,458 - 13,743,730 
511.4 Restricted Net Position - 2,160,016 - - 2,222,346 
512.4 Unrestricted Net Position 191,049 654,340 1,706,729 - 2,150,752 
513 Total Equity - Net Assets/ Position 191,049 7,348,425 7,311,187 - 18,116,828 

600 Total Liab., Def. Inflow of Res., and Equity - Net Assets / Position 282,044 9,831,864 9,618,823 - 27,103,151 

70300 Net Tenant Rental Revenue - 796,438 2,314,448 (390,153) 3,831,839 
70500 Total Tenant Revenue - 796,438 2,314,448 (390,153) 3,831,839 

70600 HUD PHA Operating Grants 131,195 - - - 8,450,370 
70610 Capital Grants - - - - 286,604 
70700 Total Fee Revenue - - - - -

70800 Other Government Grants - 222,311 838,351 - 1,060,662 
71100 Investment Income - Unrestricted 2,744 8,425 35,589 - 82,046 
71400 Fraud Recovery - - 14,406 - 14,406 
71500 Other Revenue - 42,210 36,944 - 300,645 
70000 Total Revenue 133,939 1,069,384 3,239,738 (390,153) 14,026,572 

91100 Administrative Salaries 12,251 120,964 155,371 - 915,556 
91200 Auditing Fees 749 1,310 4,817 - 12,961 
91500 Employee Benefit contributions - Administrative 5,902 50,494 115,943 - 532,290 
91600 Office Expenses 3,766 15,656 46,333 - 183,612 
91700 Legal Expense 1,115 107,726 12,844 - 151,629 
91800 Travel 437 955 3,645 - 16,757 
91900 Other 792 1,744 7,883 - 57,760 
91000 Total Operating - Administrative 25,012 298,849 346,836 - 1,870,565 

92100 Tenant Services - Salaries - - 3,321 - 88,140 
92300 Employee Benefit Contributions - Tenant Services - - 990 - 25,633 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

FDS N/CS/R 
Line Section 8 Business 
Item Descriotion Programs Activities State/Local Eliminations Total 

92500 Total Tenant Services - - 4,311 - 113,773 

93100 Water - 61,478 160,557 - 510,427 
93200 Electricity - 31,834 72,161 - 377,536 
93300 Gas - 20,536 36,466 - 275,530 
93000 Total Utilities - 113,848 269,184 - 1,163,493 

94100 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Labor - 52,986 283,741 - 757,641 
94200 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations - Materials and Other - 4,924 41,430 - 102,563 
94300 Ordinary Maintenance and Operations Contracts - 99,529 470,074 - 682,587 
94500 Emolovee Benefit Contributions - Ordinary Maintenance - 13,470 84,543 - 220,558 
94000 Total Maintenance - 170,909 879,788 - 1,763,349 

95000 Total Protective Services - - - - -

96110 Prooertvinsurance - 35,257 18,446 - 118,402 
96120 Liabilitv Insurance - 1,498 - - 26,633 
96130 Workmen's Compensation 213 5,559 17,522 - 53,862 
96140 All Other Insurance - - - - 6,640 
96100 Total insurance Premiums 213 42,314 35,968 - 205,537 

96200 Other General Expenses - 67,145 - - 71,476 
96210 Compensated Absences 2 220 749 - 2,894 
96400 Bad debt - Tenant Rents - 2,259 23,700 - 26,000 
96000 Total Other General Exoenses 2 69,624 24,449 - 100,370 

96710 Interest of Mortgage ( or Bonds) Payable - 86,380 18,391 - 104,771 
96700 Total Interest Expense and Amortization Cost - 86,380 18,391 - 104,771 

96900 Total Operating Expenses 25,227 781,924 1,578,927 - 5,321,858 

97000 Excess of Operating Revenue over Operating Expenses 108,712 287,460 1,660,811 (390,153) 8,704,714 
97100 Extraordinary Maintenance - 1,075 48,434 - 100,073 
97200 Casualty Losses - Non-capitalized - - - - 103,348 
97300 Housing Assistance Payments 93,579 - 265,185 (390,153) 6,342,894 
97350 HAP Portability-In - - - - 70,280 
97400 Depreciation Expense - 232,863 344,653 - 1,048,198 
90000 Total Expenses 118,806 1,015,862 2,237,199 (390,153) 12,986,651 

10100 Total Other financing Sources (Uses) - - - - -
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA SCHEDULE 

DECEMBER 31, 2018 

FDS N/CS/R 
Line Section 8 Business 
Item Description Programs Activities State/Local Eliminations Total 

10000 Excess (Deficiency) of Total Revenue Over (Under) Total Expenses 15,133 53,522 1,002,539 - 1,039,921 

11020 Required Annual Debt Principal Payments - 68,842 68,903 - 137,745 
11030 Beginning Equity 188,197 7,414,750 6,753,987 - 18,795,632 
11040 Prior Period Adjustments, Equity Transfers and Correction of Errors (12,281) (119,847) (445,339) - (1,718,725) 
11170 Administrative Fee Equity - - - - (333,604) 
11180 Housing Assistance Payments Equity - - - - 62,330 
11190 Unit Months Available 300 672 2,712 - 12,394 
11210 Number of Unit Months Leased 300 612 2,648 - 12,114 
11620 Building Purchases - - - - 286,604 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF ACTUAL MODERNIZATION COSTS- UNCOMPLETED 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Project: MA01P036501-16 MA01P036501-17 

Modernization Funds Approved $ 290,435 $ 313,889 

Modernization Funds Expended 140 500 279 904 

Excess of Modernization Funds Approved $ 149.935 $ 33,985 

Modernization Funds Advanced $ 140,500 $ 279,904 

Modernization Funds Expended 140 500 279 904 

Excess of Modernization Funds Advanced 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

Department of Housing & Urban Development (HUD) 

Housing Voucher Cluster 
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

Total Housing Voucher Cluster 

Section 8 Project-Based Cluster 
Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation 
Section 8 New Construction and Substantial Rehabilitation 

Total Section 8 Project-Based Cluster 

Public and Indian Housing 
Public Housing Capital Fund (CFP) 

Total Department of Housing & Urban Development 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 

CFDA 
Number 

14.871 

14.182 
14.182 

14.850 
14.872 

Pass-
Through Amounts 
Award Provided to 

Number Sub-reciuients 

$ 

MA06H052048 

$ 

$ 

Federal 
Financial 
Assistance 

Exuenditures 

6,883,584 
6 883 584 

131,195 
1476990 
1 608 185 

1,377,378 
286 604 

10155751 

10 155 751 

See Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

NOTE 1- BASIS OF PRESENTATION 

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the schedule) includes the 
federal grant activity of Newton Housing Authority, under programs of the federal government 
for the year ended December 31, 2018. The information in the schedule is presented in 
accordance with the requirements of the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirement, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the schedule presents only a 
selected portion of the operations of Newton Housing Authority, it is not intended to and does 
not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of Newton Housing 
Authority. 

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

Expenditures reported on the schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. For 
cost-reimbursement awards, such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles 
contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or 
are limited as to reimbursement. For performance-based awards, expenditures reported 
represent amounts earned. 

NOTE 3-INDIRECT COST RATE 

The Newton Housing Authority has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate 
allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 
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MARCUM 
ACCOUNTANTS .t.. ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED 

ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE 
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To The Board of Commissioners 
Newton Housing Authority 

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
Newton Housing Authority as of and for the year ended December 31, 2018, and the related notes 
to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Newton Housing Authority's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated September 30, 2019. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Newton Housing 
Authority's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on 
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
Newton Housing Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Newton Housing Authority's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph 
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did 
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

MARCUMGROUP 
MEMRER 

Marcum UP • 53 State Street • 17th Floor II Boston, Massachusetts 02109 • Phone 617.807.5000 • Fax 617.807.5001 a marcumllp.com 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Newton Housing Authority's 
financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with 
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with 
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. 
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no 
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government 
Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Boston, Massachusetts 
September 30, 2019 
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MARCUM 
ACCOUNTANTS .. ADVISORS 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR 
FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER 
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE 

To The Board of Commissioners 
Newton Housing Authority 

Report on Compliance for Each Maior Federal Program 

We have audited the Newton Housing Authority's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material 
effect on each of the Newton Housing Authority's major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2018. The Newton Housing Authority's major federal programs are identified in the 
summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned 
costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and 
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for the Newton Housing Authority's 
major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in 
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the 
audit requirements of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative 
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). 
Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements 
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. 
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Newton Housing Authority's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered 
necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Newton 
Housing Authority's compliance. 

MARCUMGROUP 
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Opinion on Each Maior Federal Program 

In our opinion, the Newton Housing Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2018 

Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of the Newton Housing Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Newton Housing 
Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major federal program as a basis for designing auditing 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
compliance for each major federal program and to test and report on internal control over 
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express 
an op1mon on the effectiveness of the Newton Housing Authority's internal control over 
compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control 
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing 
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over 
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies in internal control over compliance, 
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet 
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control 
over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. 
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of 
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the 
requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other 
purpose. 

Boston, Massachusetts 
September 30, 2019 
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NEWTON HOUSING AUTHORITY 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018 

SECTION I-SUMMARY OF AUDITORS' RESULTS 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Type of auditors' report issued on whether the financial statements 
audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified Opinion 

Internal control over financial reporting: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

FEDERAL AWARDS 

Internal control over major federal programs: 
• Material weakness( es) identified? 
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? 

Yes __x_ No 
Yes __x_ None Reported 

Yes __x_No 

Yes __x_No 
Yes __x_ None Reported 

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance 
for major federal programs: Unmodified Opinion 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be 
reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes __x_No 

Identification of major federal programs: 

CFDA# 

14.872 
14.871 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Public Housing Capital Fund 
Section 8 Housing Choice Vouchers 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

SECTION II-FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FINDINGS 

No matters were reported. 

X Yes 

SECTION Ill - FEDERAL AW ARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

No matters were reported. 

SECTION IV - SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
No prior year findings. 

No 
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Project Address # of Units Units Bedrooms
City 

Sources Total City $
Private Debt 

Source

Private 
Debt 

Balance
Assessed 

value Rental Subsidy

Income 
Restrictio
ns

CDBG $1,419,122
Brookline 
Bank $9,499 $1,160,900

7 units with Section 
8 PBV (NHA) and 3 
MRVP (MHB)

7 at 50% 
AMI, 3 at 

80%

CPA $311,936
Brookline 
Bank $23,131
Brookline 
Bank $269,062
Brookline 
Bank $23,578

390 Newtonville Ave. 11 1 HOME $77,500 $1,461,700 4 MRVP (MHB) 80% AMI
CDBG $17,995
CPA $1,000,000

68-70 Wyman St. 10 Village Bank $814,092 $2,047,200
Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)

68 Wyman St. 
Apt #1 2
68 Wyman St. 
Apt #2 2
68 Wyman St. 
Apt #3 1
68 Wyman St. 
Apt #4 2
68 Wyman St. 
Apt #5 1
70 Wyman St. 
Apt #1 2
70 Wyman St. 
Apt #2 2
70 Wyman St. 
Apt #3 2
70 Wyman St. 
Apt #4 2
70 Wyman St. 
Apt #5 2

76 Webster Park 1 3 $337,400
Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)

NHA Management Portfolio (descriptive table for 2 January 2020 CPA/CDBG proposal)

45 Pelham St. 10 1

$2,108,400
Section 8 tenant-

based (NHA)52-54 Wyman St. 10 2

HOME $17,535

Village Bank $700,957
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Project Address # of Units Units Bedrooms
City 

Sources Total City $
Private Debt 

Source

Private 
Debt 

Balance
Assessed 

value Rental Subsidy

Income 
Restrictio
ns

NHA Management Portfolio (descriptive table for 2 January 2020 CPA/CDBG proposal)

  

36,  38, 40, 46 Crescent St. 4
Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)

36C Crescent 
St. 2 $481,500
38C Crescent 
St. 2 $494,900
40A Crescent 
St. 2 $422,100
46C Crescent 
St. 2 $421,700

1115 #8 Beacon St. 1 2 $490,300
Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)

9A, 17A Baldwin St. 2
Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)

9A Baldwin St.
1 $287,400

17 A Baldwin 
St. 1 $287,400

23 Considine Rd. 1 3 $324,400
Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)

50-52 Fuller St. 2 2 $738,800
Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)

15-17 Jackson Terrace 1 2 $563,100
Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)

31 Murray Rd. 1 3 $492,400
Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)

83-85 West Street 2 $629,400 80% AMI

83 West Street
3

85 West Street
2

Section 8 tenant-
based (NHA)
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AAFCPAs 
re l inds I gr a hearts 

lndepen dent _Auditor's Re port 

To the Boa rd of Directors of 
Citiz.ens for Affordable Ho usi r;,,g in Newton Development Organization, Inc.: 

50 Washington Slreel 
Wes borough , MA O 1581 

508.366.9100 
aafcpa.com 

We wer-e engaged to audit the accompanying flnanda l statements of Citizens for Affordable Housing in 
Newton Development Organ zat ion, nc. (a Mas_sa,chLliSet ts corporation, not for profi) ( he 
Organrzation), which comprise the statem-ent o.f fi nancial position as of December 31,. 2017, and th,e 
re lated statements of actlv ties a d changes in net assets, cas · flows and functional ex:Pens,es for the 
year then ended, and the re lated notes to the fimm dal staterne nts. 

Management• s Respon,sibH tv for the f inancia'I Statem ems 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presenta ion of these financial s a, eme!'I' s In 
accordanc,e with accounting prlnciples generally accepted in the Un ted States of Arnerka; his indud-es 
the des1gn1 implem ntation1 and maintenance of internal -cont ol relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financia l statements that are free from materia l' misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Audiitor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility ls to express an opinion on t e.se financial stat,ements based -on ccnducting the audit 
1n accordance with a1ud1ting standards generally accepted in the Uni ed States of America. Because of 
the matter describetd in the Basis for Disclaim.er of Opinion paragraph, however, we we e not abl'e to 
obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basls for an audit opinion. 

Basiis for Diisdaimer o,f Op'nion 

Detailed property rec-ords have not been maintained and certai prior-year records and supporting data 
were not aivailable for our aud t. Therefore, we were not able to o,btaln sufficient appropriarte audi 
evidence .about the amounts at which property and equipment and re lated accumulated depreciatio , 
are recorded in the accompanying ba la nee sheet at Decembe 31, 2017 (stated at $12,460,460 and 
$3,297,838, r,espectively), and the amount of deprecia1 ion expense for he -year then ended {stated a 
$275,268). 

Disdaime r of Opinion 

Because of the signlficance of the matter described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion paragraph, we 
have no been able to obtain sufficlerr appropriate audit eviden-ce to prov ide a basis for a ; audi 
opinion. Accordingly, we do not express. an opinion on t he fina ncfa l statements referred to in · he ·first 
paragraph. 
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Emphasis of Matter Regarding Going Concern 

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Organization will 
continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note 13 to the financial statements, the Organization 
has suffered recurring losses from operations, has an operating net asset deficit, and has stated that 
substantial doubt exists about its ability to continue as a going concern. Management's evaluation of 
the events and conditions and management's plans regarding these matters are also described in 
Note 13. The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the 
outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion ls not modified with respect to that matter. 

e!.:::i,i!:-, £,,,u ,(!,, j)(l, 
June 28, 2019 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Statement of Financial Position 
December 31, 2017 

Assets 

Current Assets: 
Cash - operating 
Accounts receivable 
Tenant security deposits 
Prepaid expenses 

Total current assets 

Property and Equipment: 
l and 
Buildings 
Building improvements 
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 

Less • accumulated depreciation 
Net pro perty and equipment 

Other Assets: 
Construction in process 
Reserves 

Total other assets 

Total assets 

liabilities and Net Assets 

Current Liabilities: 
Current portion of mortgage notes payable 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 
Accounts payable - development 
Due to related party 
Tenant security deposits 

Total current liabilities 

Long-Term Liabilities: 
Mortgage notes payable, net 
Contingent debt 

Total liabilities 

Net Assets: 
Unrestricted: 

Operating 
Property and equipment 

Total unrestricted 

Temporarily restricted 

Total net assets 

Total liabilities and net assets 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 

s 22,914 
12,717 
35,548 
4,585 

75,764 

2,265,452 
5,415,710 
4,748,103 

31,195 
12,460,460 

3,297,838 
9,162,622 

1,024,989 
40,297 

1,065,286 

$ 10,303,672 

$ 84,333 
115,903 

33,978 
26,727 
35,548 

296,489 

2,945,556 
8,246,132 

11,488,177 

(126,170) 
(1,132,091) 
(1,258,261) 

73,756 

(1,184,505) 

$ 10,303,672 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Statement of Activit ies and Changes in Net Assets 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2017 

Unrestricted Net Assets: 
Operating revenue and support: 

Gross potential residential rental income, net of vacancies of $15,068 
Special event 
Developer fees and overhead 
Contracts 
Grants and contributions 
Program fees and other 
Interest and other 
Net assets released from program restrictions 

Total operating revenue and support 

Operating expenses: 
Housing Development 
Rental 
General and administration 
Fund raising 

Total operating expenses 

Changes in unrestricted net assets from operations 

Non-operating revenue: 
Write-off of deferred interest 

Changes in unrestricted net assets 

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets: 
Grants 
Net assets released from program restrictions 

Changes in temporarily restricted net assets 

Changes in net assets 

Net Assets: 
Beginning of year 

End of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements. 

$ 555,933 
141,875 

26,327 
20,000 
17,697 
11,644 

3,996 
3,283 

780,755 

49,967 
722,656 
154,406 

44,254 

971,283 

(190,528) 

60,505 

(130,023) 

60,015 
(3,283) 

56,732 

(73,291) 

(1,111,214) 

S (1,184,505) 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSIING IINI NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For t he Vear Ended December 31, 2017 

CicSh f lows from Operating Activ"ities: 
Ch a nges in net assets 
Adjustments to reconcile changes ·n net i!Ssets to net cash 

provided by o pernti ng activities: 
Depredation 
Write-off of def erred interest 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 

Accounts reeeivable 
Prepaid exp ense:s 
Accounts payable and accrued ex:pe Mes. 
Due to rela ed party 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

C-ash Flows fromi Invest· ng Actiivities: 
Deposit to and interest earned on reserves 
W"thdra wa II from reserves 
Purchase of property and eq uipment 

Net cash used in investing activities 

Cash Flows from Flnandng Activit~es: 
Proceeds from ortgage notes payable 
Payments on mortgage notes payable 

Net cash provided by financing activities 

Net Change in Ca1s:h - Operatiing 

Cash - Operating: 
Beginning of year 

End o,f year 

Sup,p1 eme ntal o ·,sciosure of CacSh Flow I nformaUon: 
Cash pa id for interest: 

Expensed 

Acco1.rn1ts payabl.e - development 

Cons ruction in process placed i se rvke 

The accompany'ng no es are an 111 egral part of theses a ements. 

$ (73,291) 

275,268 
(60,505) 

(6;811) 
(4;585) 
56,.143 
26,727 

212,946 

(22,173) 
11,714 

(379,23,3), 

(389,692) 

257,342 
(145,998} 

1,344 

(65,402) 

88,316 

$ 22,914 

$ 100,230 

S 33,WS 

$ l,646,131 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE H OUSHfG IN Nl:WTON DEVELOPMENT ORGA:NtZA Ti ON, I NC. 

s aitemen of Functional Expenses 
For the Vear Ended December 31, 2017 

Program Services 

Housing 
Devek1pm ent Rental 

Operating Elc;p,en s,es: 
Person ne I and .re lated: 

Salaries $ 11,885 $ 21,045 
Payroll taxes and fringe benefits 3,084 5,789 

Total personnef and re fated 14,969 26,834 

Other: 
Depredation 2,867 271,937 
P rof,essio na t f,ees 10,567 19,788 
Mai ntena nee 8,101 128,546 
Interest 108 100,,053 
Real estate talees 71,379 
Uti liti,es 4,147 51,957 
Property Tnsuranc:e 6,959 26;lW 
special event 
R e:nt and condo fees 1,635 8,971 
Miscel la n eo,us 320 914 
Prog.ram expense 5,544 
Pr nting and postage 5 
Advertising 
Telephone 289 613 

Tot:a l other 34,998 695,822 

Total operatiing expenses s 49,967 s 722,656 

Tctai 
Program 
Services 

$ 32,930 
8,873 

41,803 

274,804 
30,355 

136,647 
100,171 

71,3,79 
66,104 
33,069 

10,606 
1,234 
5,544 

5 

902 

730,820 

s 772,.623 

The a ccom p,a nyl ng notes are an i nteg ra I part of hes·e staiteme nts. 

Ge·neral 
and 

.Admini:s,. Fund• 
tratlon ra,ising Total 

$ 12,632 $ 8,969 $ 541531 
2,316 3,356 14,545 

14,948 12,325 69,076 

464 275,.2'68 
119,746 2,332 152,433 

1,966 138,613 
59 100,230 

71,379 
65,827 

7,021 40,090 
21,14S 21,148 

1,442 1,538 14,077 
6,315 1,365 8,700 

5,544 
1,822 2,186 4,012 

3,080 3,080 
623 280 1,806 

139,458 31,929 902,207 

s 154,406 s 44,254 s 971,283 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 

l. OPERATIONS AND NONPROFIT STATUS 

Operations 

Citizens for Affordable Housing in Newton Development Organization, Inc. (the Organization) 
was organized in January 1994 to expand the supply of decent and affordable housing in 
Newton, Massachusetts. The purpose of the Organization is accomplished by promoting the 
development, construction and conversion of properties and serving as a Community Housing 
Development Organization. 

The Organization has developed forty-eight units of housing, of w hich fifteen units were sold 
over the years to eligible home owners. Included In its portfolio are units which serve victims of 
domestic violence, adu lts with developmental disabilities, formerly homeless veterans, and low­
Income families. 

As o f January 1, 2017, the Organization affiliated its operations with Metro West Collaborative 
Development, Inc. (MWCO) by merging their Boards of Directors. The new Board of Directors 
consists of three members from each organization. 

MWCD was formed in 1991 to address the shrinking supply of affordable housing in Its 
community. The mission of MWCD is to organize residents, mobilize resources, and identify 
Ideas that improve the quality of life for residents of Metro West communities. MWCD has 
separate audited consolidating financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, in 
which the Organization's accompanying financial statements were not included. 

Nonprofit Status 

The Organization is exempt from Federal Income taxes as an organization (not a private 
foundation) formed for charitable purposes under Section 501{c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code (IRC). The Organization is also exempt from state income taxes. Donors may deduct 
contributions made to the Organization within IRC requirements. 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

The Organization prepares its financial statements In accordance with generally accepted 
accounting standards and principles (U.S. GAAP) established by the Financial Accounting 
Standards Board (FASB). References to U.S. GAAP in these notes are to the FASB Accounting 
Standards Codification (ASC). 

Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to 
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 

Rents are recorded over the lease term. Contracts, program fees and other and developer fees 
and overhead are recorded when services are provided and costs are incurred. Unrestricted 
grants and contributions are recorded as unrestricted revenue and net assets when received or 
unconditionally committed. Special event revenues are recognized In the period in which the 
events occur. 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Revenue Recognition (Continued) 

Donor restricted grants and contributions {I.e. grants and contributions with t ime or purpose 
restrictions) are recognized as temporari ly restricted revenue and net assets when received or 
unconditionally pledged. When a donor restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time 
restriction ends or a purpose restriction is accomplished, the amounts are shown as net assets 
released from restrictions in the accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets. 
Donor restricted grants and contributions received and satisf1ed in the same period are included 
in unrestricted net assets. 

All other revenue is recognized as earned. 

Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets 

Transactions deemed by management to be ongoing, major, or central to the provision of 
program services are reported as operating revenue and support and operating expenses In the 
accompanying statement of activities and changes in net assets. 

Net Assets 

The classes of net assets are presented as follows: 

Unrestricted: 

Unrestricted net assets are those net resources that bear no external restrictions and are 
generally available for use by t he Organization. The Organization has grouped its 
unrestricted net assets Into t he following categories: 

Operating • consists of amounts relating to program and o ther operating activities and 
are currently available for operations. -

Property and equipment - reflects the net book value of the Organization's property 
and equipment, construction In process, and reserves, net of related debt. 

Temporarily Restricted : 

The Organization receives grants and contributions which are designated by donors for 
specific purposes and designated t ime periods. These grants and contributions are recorded 
as temporarily restricted net assets until they are expended for their designated purposes or 
when the designated time periods expire. Temporarily reslricted net assets at December 
31, 2017, are purpose restricted. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable are recorded at t heir net present value when unconditionally committed, 
when contracts are billed, or when rental fees and program revenues are recorded. 

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 

The allowance for doubtfu l accounts is recorded based on management's analysis of specific 
accounts and their estimate of amounts that may be uncollectible, if any. There was no 
allowance for doubtful accounts as of December 31, 2017. 
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CIITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN N1EWTON !D EVIElOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

N o,tes o Flnancia I Statements 
Decem her 31, 2017 

2. sm N flCANT ACCOUNTING POUCI ES ( Continued) 

Property and Equiipment and Depireti ation 

Property and ,equipment are recorded at cos when purchased or at fair mi:lrket value at the 
date of donation. Renewa s and betterments are capitalized as addit ions to the related asset 
acc-0 unts, whi le epafrs and matntenance are e pensed as incurred. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight·line method over the foUowing estimated useful 
lirves: 

Bui dings 
Building mp rovem ents 
, urn rure, fiixtu res and equipment 

Estimated 
Useful lives 

20 • 40 years 
27. 5 • -40 years 

5 - 10 years 

Depredation expense was $2751268 for they-ear ended Decembe 31, 2017. 

Expense Allccadon 

The financial statements present expenses by functional classification in accordance wit the 
overa I service , is:sion of the Organiiafon. Each fi.Hlctional das:siftcation displays all e,)(pe nses 
related to t e underlying operatlons by natural classificatio1,. Expenses are allocated a,mong 
program s,ervices, genernl and administration and f1mdrnising costs on t he basis of the time 
records and on estimates made by the Organiza ion's management 

Advertising Costs 

Adverttsfng costs are expensed as rncurred. 

Subsequent Events 

Subsequent events have bee · eva luated through June 28, 2019, which is the da_e the financI~I 
statements were available to be issued. Except as disclosed in Notes 12 and 141 · here were no 
even-ts that met the criteria for rec-0gnition or dlscl'osure in the financial statements. 

Income Taxes 

The Organiz.atlon ac,co1.mts for unce a n yin ncome taxes in accordance with ASC Topic, Income 
Taxes. This standard clarifies the .accounting for uncerta.inty In tax positlons and pre·sc-ribes a 
recognition thresho ld and measurement attribute for the financial! statements regarding a tax 
positron taken or expected to be taken in a tax. etum. The Orga izartion has determined tha 
there are no uncert,fn tax positions which quilllfy for either recognt ion or disclosure ·n 'the 
financia l statements at December 31, 2017. 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Fair Value Measurements 

The Organization follows the accounting and disclosure standards pertaining to ASC Topic, Fair 
Value Measurements, for qualifying assets and liabilit ies. Fair value is defined as the price that 
the Organization would receive upon selling an asset or pay td settle a liability In an orderly 
transaction between market participants. 

The Organization uses a framework for measuring fair va lue that includes a hierarchy that 
categorizes and prioritizes the sources used to measure and disclose fair value. This hierarchy is 
broken down into three levels based on inputs that market participants would use in valuing the 
financial instruments based on market data obtained from sources independent of the 
Organization. Inputs refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use In 
pricing the financial instrument, including assumpt ions about risk. Inputs may be observable or 
unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the assumptions market participants 
would use In pricing the financial instrument developed based on market data obtained from 
sources independent of t he reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the 
reporting entity's own assumptions about the assumpt ions market participants would use in 
pricing the asset developed based on the best information available. 

The t hree-tier hierarchy of inputs is summarized in the three broad levels as follows: 

Level 1 • Inputs that reflect unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets 
at the measurement date. 

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset either directly 
or indirectly, including inputs in markets that are not considered to be active. 

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable and which require significant judgment or 
estimation. 

An asset or liability's level within the framework is based upon the lowest level of any input that 
is significant to the fair value measurement. All qualifying assets and liabilities are valued using 
Level l inputs. 

3. LEASE COMMITMENTS 

The Organization was renting an office space as a tenant-at-will until March 2017, at which time 
the management responsibilities were transferred to MWCD. The monthly rent payments were 
$2,564. Rent expense for the year ended December 31, 2017, was $7,692, w hich is included in 
rent and condo fees in the accompanying statement of functional expenses. 

4. TENANT SECURITY DEPOSITS 

The Organization maintains tenant security deposits in separate interest-bearing accounts. 
Interest earned on the security deposits is paid to the tenants annually. 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 

S. MORTGAGE NOTES PAYABLE 

Mortgage notes payable consist of the following at December 31, 2017: 

Ten mortgage notes payable with the Village Bank. These notes have 
various maturity dates from December 2017 through April 2044 and 
bear interest at rates varying from 3.5% to 6% per annum. Principal 
and interest are due in monthly installments. These notes are secured 
by first mortgages on the properties for which t he proceeds were used 
and an assignment of rents and leases. A note with an outstanding 
principal balance of $920,947 was due In December 2017 and was paid 
during 2018 (see Note 14 ). 

Mortgage note payable w ith the Cambridge Savings Bank in connection 
with development of the affordable housing units at 18-20 Cambria 
Road In Newton, Massachusetts (MA). This note matures in March 
2018, bears interest at 3.86% per annum, and is secured by a shared 
first mortgage on the property and an assignment of rents and leases. 
Principal and interest are due in monthly installments. The note was 
refinanced during 2018 (see Note"14). 

Mortgage note payable with the Cambridge Savings Bank in connection 
with development of the affordable housing units at 61 Pearl Street In 
Newton, MA. This note matu res in January 2023, bears interest at 
4.64% per annum, and is secured by a shared first mortgage on the 
property and an assignment of rents and leases. Principal and Interest 
are due In monthly Installments. The bank loaned an additional 
$45,000 under this note during 2018 (see Note 14). 

M ortgage note payable with the Boston Community Loan Fund In 
connection with development of the affordable housing units at 90 
Christina St reet in Newton, MA. This note matures in January 2024, 
bears interest at 7% per annum, and Is secured by a shared first 
mortgage on the property and an assignment of rents and leases. 
Principal and interest are due in monthly installments. 

Less - current portion 

Total mortgage payable, net 

$ 2,589,776 

158,278 

196,836 

84.999 
3,029,889 

84.333 

S 2,945,556 
The mortgage notes payable contain various covenants and restrictions on the Organization, as 
described in the agreements. The Organization was in compliance with these covenants as of 
December 31, 2017. 

Maturities of mortgage notes payable over the next five years are as follows: 

2018 
2019 
2020 
2021 
2022 

$ 84,333 
$ 87,189 
$ 301,816 
$ 86,015 
$ 266,050 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 

6. CONTINGENT DEBT 

Contingent debt consists of the following at December 31, 2017: 

Twenty-four non-interest bearing mortgage note payables with the City 
of Newton under three different programs: Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG), HOME Investment Partnerships Program and 
Community Preservation Act. These notes have various maturity dates 
from 2033 through 2060. No payments are due on these loans and 
many are forgivable unless the Organization does not comply with 
certain affordability and other restrictions, as defined In agreements. 
These notes are secured by the second shared mortgages on the 
corresponding properties. 

Four mortgage notes payable with the City of Newton under two 
different programs: COBG and HOME Investment Partnerships 
Program. These notes bear an annual Interest rate of 7% and have 
various maturity dates from 2039 through 2058. No interest and 
principal payments are due on these loans and if the Organization 
complies with certain affordability and other restrictions, as defined In 
agreements. These notes are secured by the second shared mortgages 
on the corresponding properties. 

Three non-interest bearing mortgage notes payable with Community 
Economic Development Assistance Corporation (CEDAC) with 
outstanding principal ranging from $90,000 to $389,111. These notes 
mature In 2023, 2027 and 2033 and are secured by shared second 
mortgages on the corresponding properties. Each note may be 
extended as long as the property for w hich it was used maintains its 
affordability restriction. Annual payments are due if gross receipts 
exceed 105% of gross expenditures, as defined in the agreement, 
within forty-five days after year-end. There were no payments due at 
December 31, 2017. 

Non-interest bearing mortgage note payable with the Commonwealth of 
Massachusetts Department of Housing and Community Development 
(DHCD) under the Affordable Housing Trust Fund (AHTF) In connection 
with development of the affordable housing units at 228 Webster 
Street In Newton, MA. This note Is due In May 2032 and Is secured by 
the shared second mortgage on the property. 

Non-interest bearing mortgage note payable with the Village Bank under 
the Federal Home Loan Bank of Boston Affordable Housing Program 
(FHLBB AHP) in connection with development of the affordable 
housing units at 2148-2150 Commonwealth Avenue in Newton, MA. 
This note is forgivable after fifteen years from completion of the 
project, as long as the property is used by income-eligible households, 
as defined by the agreement. This note may become due if the 
Organization defaults on any of the conditions listed in the note and 
security agreement. The note is secured by the shared second 
mortgage on the property. 

Total contingent debt 

$ 6,898,091 

443,230 

604,811 

250,000 

SD.ODO 

s_s.2gs.B2 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial St atements 
December 31, 2017 

6. CONTINGENT DEBT (Continued) 

The contingent debt mortgage notes payable contain various covenants and restrictions on the 
Organization, as described In the agreements. The Organization was not In compliance with 
certain covenants as of December 31, 2017. It Is the opinion of the management that the notes 
will not become due since the Organization maintains its mission of providing decent and 
affordable housing in Newton, MA. 

7. CONSTRUCTION IN PROCESS 

The Organization operates housing development programs. Under these programs, the 
Organization acquires and constructs affordable homes as well as develops rental housing. The 
Organization accounts for the carrying value of its projects under development in accordance 
with the requirement of U.S. GAAP standard on the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. 
As of December 31, 2017, the Organization had not recognized any reduction In the carrying 
value of its projects under development when considering this standard. 

During 2016, the Organization acquired land and a building in Newton, MA with the purpose of 
developing several affordable housing units for disabled individuals, as well as one commercial 
space for an unrelated nonprofit organization that provides services to the disabled Auburn 
Street Project. The Organization Is the developer for this project and will oversee the 
construction process, which is scheduled to begin during 2018. The Organization will earn the 
developer fee and overhead totaling approximately $320,000. The Organization borrowed 
$925,000 from the Village Bank {see Note 5) to acquire the parcels to develop the project. The 
capitalized interest on this loan was $50,851 for the year ended December 31, 2017. During 
2018, this loan was repaid with the proceeds from the City of Newton CDBG and HOME non­
interest bearing loans (see Note 14). 

All costs related to the Auburn Street Project have been capitalized. These costs Include the 
acquisition price, real estate taxes, interest, development costs, salaries, and other costs 
incurred before the project has been given an occupancy certificate. 

8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

In accordance with the Organization's Articles of Organization, one Board member is an Income 
eligible tenant in a unit authorized and monitored by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development. Another Board member works at a bank that lends money to the Organization in 
a position that does not influence lending decisions. 

The Organization owes MWCD $26,727 for certain operating expenses and management service 
fees {see Note 9) as of December 31, 2017. These amounts are included in due to related party 
in the accompanying statement of financial position. 

MWCD has a developer agreement with the Organization to complete the Auburn Street Project 
(see Note 7) and is entitled to be reimbursed for expenses Incurred in connection with this 
development. 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 

9. MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

The Organization has an agreement with MWCO to carry on the day-to-day operations of the 
Organization. MWCO Is reimbursed for costs Incurred relating to staffing services and supplies 
for the Organization and also receives a management fee of 20% overhead. This agreement can 
be terminated by either party with thirty days' notice. The Organization incurred approximately 
$87,000 of the costs related to the management agreement during 2017, which are included in 
professional fees in the accompanying statement of functional expenses. 

10. CONCENTRATIONS 

The Organization also receives significant rent subsidies from the various housing authorities for 
qualified tenants. The Organization earned $412,691 In rental subsidies during 2017, which is 
53% of all operating revenue. 

11. RESERVES 

The Organization maintains a replacement reserve to fund future capital improvements on its 
properties. During 2017, the Organization deposited approximately $22,000 into the reserve for 
two projects {54 Taft Avenue and 10-12 Cambria Street) that were placed into service in 2017. 
The Organization withdrew $11,714 from the reserves for various repairs and equipment 
replacement on its properties. 

12. RETIREMENT PLAN 

The Organization had a 401(k) profit sharing plan (the Plan). The Plan covered all eligible 
employees as identified in the Plan document. The Plan provided for an employee elective 
deferral contribution along with a matching employer contribution. The amount of the 
matching employer contribution is determined annually by the Board of Directors. Pension 
expense for the year ended December 31, 2017, was $5,379. The Plan was terminated 
subsequent to year-end and all assets were distributed to the participants. 

13. CONTINUING OPERATIONS 

The Organization incurred a net loss of approximately $73,000 in 2017, and at December 31, 
2017, current liabilities exceeded current assets by approximately $221,000. In addition, the 
Organization's unrestricted operating net assets were a deficit of approximately $126,000 as of 
December 31, 2017. Management and the Board recognize that the Organization's continued 
viability is highly dependent on the reliance of developer fees and t he ability to find new 
projects in Newton, MA. Without a continued pipeline of projects, the Organization's cashflow 
will not be able to sustain operations. In addition, the Organization does not have the sufficient 
capital reserves needed to address the property improvements that are anticipated over the 
next two to five years. 

During 2018, the Board of Directors started negotiations with the Newton Housing Authority 
(NHA) and the City of Newton regarding transfer of the existing completed small properties to 
the NHA with the goal of preserving those assets in the hands of an owner better suited to 
manage small properties. The Board is currently evaluating the viability of the Organization and 
its mission as an owner/developer of larger-scale properties in Newton, MA. 
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CITIZENS FOR AFFORDABLE HOUSING IN NEWTON DEVELOPMENT ORGANIZATION, INC. 

Notes to Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

Effective June 1, 2018, MWCD and the Organization ceased operating as affiliated organizations. 
MWCD continues to provide management and development services per written agreements 
(see Note 9) until the Organization finds another provider of such services. The Boards of 
Directors are no longer affiliated. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2017, the Organization received proceeds from a non-Interest 
bearing loan issued by the City of Newton under HOME and CDBG programs tota ling $1,467,900 
(see Notes 5 and 7). The Organization used the proceeds of this loan to pay off a note from the 
Village Bank with the outstanding principal of $920,947 as of December 31, 2017. The loan 
places a twenty-year affordability restriction on the two units at 236 Auburn Street property In 
Newton, MA and is secured by a shared second mortgage. The principal is due twenty years 
after the closing date, as defined in the agreement, and shall be incrementally forgiven at a rate 
of l/20'h per year upon the issuance of the annual certificate of compliance from the City of 
Newton. Ali principal will be forgiven at the end of the term provided the Organization is in 
compliance with all requirements specified in the agreement. 

During 2018, the Organization refinanced one of Cambridge Savings Bank's mortgage notes 
payable with the principal of $158,278 outstanding as of December 31, 2017 (see Note 5). The 
outstanding loan principal balance at the time of refinancing was reduced by $45,000 to 
$112,536. The new loan bears a fixed interest rate of 4.5% through April 30, 2023, and Is 
secured by the first mortgage on the property at 18-20 Cambria Road in Newton, MA. New 
principal and_ interest payments are due monthly based on a thirty-year amortization period. 

Subsequent to December 31, 2017, the Organization received a loan modification for the 
mortgage note payable with the Cambridge Savings Bank in connection with the property at 61 
Pearl Street In Newton, MA (see Note 5). This loan modification resulted in $45,000 as 
additional proceeds making the new loan amount $239,56S on May 31, 2018, extended the 
maturity date to April 30, 2023, and lowered t he interest rate to 4.5% annually. New principal 
and interest payments are due monthly, based on a thirty-year amortization period. The new 
mortgage note payable is still secured by the first mortgage on the property. 
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